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GLOSSARY

As used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the terms identified below have the meanings specified below unless otherwise noted or the context
indicates otherwise. References in this Form 10-Q to “Definitive Healthcare Corp.” refer to Definitive Healthcare Corp. and not to any of its subsidiaries
unless the context indicates otherwise. References in this Form 10-Q to “Definitive Healthcare”, “Definitive”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, and “our” refer
(1) prior to the consummation of the Reorganization Transactions, to Definitive OpCo and its consolidated subsidiaries, and (2) after the consummation of

the Reorganization Transactions, to Definitive Healthcare Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries unless the context indicates otherwise.

. “AIDH Buyer” refers to AIDH Buyer, LLC, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Definitive OpCo and the direct parent company of DH

Holdings.

. “Advent” refers to funds affiliated with Advent International, a global private equity firm.

. “AIDH Management Holdings, LI.C” is a special purpose investment vehicle through which certain persons, primarily employees and certain
legacy investors, indirectly hold interests in Definitive OpCo.

. “Amended LL.C Agreement” refers to the second amended and restated limited liability company agreement entered into by Definitive Opco

pursuant to which members have the right to exchange all or a portion of their LLC units for newly issued shares of Class A Common Stock
in Definitive Healthcare Corp.

. “ARR?” refers to annualized recurring revenue as of period end.

. “Blocker Company” or “Blocker Companies” refers to certain entities treated as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes that held
LLC units in Definitive OpCo which, through the Reorganization Transactions, were merged into Definitive Healthcare Corp. and are now
holders of Class A Common Stock.

. “Continuing Pre-IPO LL.C Members” refers to certain Pre-IPO LLC Members who retained their equity ownership in Definitive OpCo in the
form of LLC Units immediately following the consummation of the Reorganization Transactions.
. “Definitive OpCo” refers to AIDH TopCo, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and a subsidiary of Definitive Healthcare Corp.,

following the Reorganization Transactions.
. “DH Holdings” refers to Definitive Healthcare Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of AIDH

Buyer.
. “IPO” refers to the initial public offering of Class A Common Stock of Definitive Healthcare Corp.
. “LLC Units” refers to limited liability company interests in Definitive OpCo.
. “NDR” or “Net Dollar Retention Rate” refers to net dollar retention rate, which we calculate as the percentage of ARR retained from existing

customers across a defined period, after accounting for upsell, down-sell, pricing changes, and churn. We calculate net dollar retention as
beginning ARR for a period, plus (i) expansion ARR (including, but not limited to, upsell and pricing increases), less (ii) churn (including,
but not limited to, non-renewals and contractions), divided by (iii) beginning ARR for a period.

. “Populi” refers to Populi, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

. “Pre-IPO LLC Members” refers to certain affiliates of Spectrum Equity, Jason Krantz, DH Holdings, AIDH Management Holdings, LLC,
certain affiliates of 22C Capital, certain affiliates of Advent and certain other minority equity holders of Definitive OpCo prior to the
Reorganization Transactions.

. “Reorganization Parties” refers to the shareholders of the Blocker Companies prior to the merger of the Blocker Companies into Definitive
Healthcare Corp.

. “Reorganization Transactions” refers to transactions completed in connection with the Company’s IPO as defined within Note 1 to our
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part I, Item 1 of this Form 10-Q.

. “Spectrum Equity” refers to investment funds associated with Spectrum Equity Management, L.P., a private equity firm.

. “Sponsors” refers collectively to Advent, 22C Capital, and Spectrum Equity.

. “Tax Receivable Agreement” refers to the Tax Receivable Agreement, dated September 14, 2021, between Definitive Healthcare Corp.,
Definitive OpCo, and the TRA Parties.

. “TRA Parties” refers to the Continuing Pre-IPO LLC Members, the Reorganization Parties, and any future party to the Tax Receivable
Agreement.

. “22C Capital” refers to investment funds associated with 22C Capital LLC, a private equity firm.



CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Quarterly Report”) contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be identified by
words such as “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “seeks,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects” and similar references to future periods, or by the inclusion of
forecasts or projections. Examples of forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements we make regarding the outlook for our future
business and financial performance, such as those contained in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and assumptions regarding our business, the economy, and other future
conditions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, by their nature, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks, and changes in
circumstances that are difficult to predict. As a result, our actual results may differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements.
Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, regional,
national, or global political, economic, business, competitive, market, and regulatory conditions.

For the reasons described above, we caution you against relying on any forward-looking statements, which should also be read in conjunction with
Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” in our Amendment No.1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 (the
“2022 Form 10-K/A”) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on August 14, 2023, and Part I, Item 1A in this Quarterly Report and
the other cautionary statements that are included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and in our public filings, including under “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Any forward-looking statement made by us speaks only as of the date on which we make

it. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments, or
otherwise, except as may be required by law.



PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Current portion of deferred contract costs
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net
Other assets
Deferred contract costs, net of current portion
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill
Total assets
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of term loan
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long term liabilities:
Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Term loan, net of current portion

DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.

(in thousands, except number of shares and par value)
(Unaudited)

Operating lease liabilities, net of current portion
Tax receivable agreements liability, net of current portion

Deferred tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity:

Class A Common Stock, par value $0.001, 600,000,000 shares authorized, 113,085,164 and
105,138,273 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively
Class B Common Stock, par value $0.00001, 65,000,000 shares authorized, 42,861,612 and
41,548,822 shares issued and outstanding, respectively, at June 30, 2023, and 50,433,101 and
48,923,952 shares issued and outstanding, respectively at December 31, 2022

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit
Noncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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June 30, 2023

(As Restated)
December 31, 2022

132,385 146,934
218,515 184,939
44,519 58,799
13,734 12,686
11,889 10,387
421,042 413,745
4,488 4,464
8,697 9,681
3,938 4,683
16,171 14,596
325,794 350,722
1,324,733 1,324,733
2,104,863 2,122,624
3,650 3,948
33,238 26,855
97,495 99,692
12,031 8,594
1,713 1,521
148,127 140,610
150 236
249,166 255,765
9,004 9,969
163,298 155,111
78,569 75,737
1,090 3,251
649,404 640,679
113 105
1,050,714 970,207
3,252 3,668
(45,691) (25,062)
447,071 533,027
1,455,459 1,481,945
2,104,863 2,122,624




DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(amounts in thousands, except share amounts and per share data)
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(As Restated) (As Restated)
2023 2022 2023 2022
Revenue $ 60,957 $ 54,548 $ 120,158 $ 104,672
Cost of revenue:
Cost of revenue exclusive of amortization 8,078 6,198 16,630 12,148
Amortization 3,090 5,580 6,444 10,958
Gross profit 49,789 42,770 97,084 81,566
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 24,702 23,585 48,125 44,878
Product development 10,229 8,706 20,113 15,556
General and administrative 13,670 10,056 27,749 21,091
Depreciation and amortization 9,688 10,194 19,278 20,068
Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses 3,571 2,107 6,161 3,417
Total operating expenses 61,860 54,648 121,426 105,010
Loss from operations (12,071) (11,878) (24,342) (23,444)
Other income (expense), net:
Interest income 3,572 180 6,406 250
Interest expense (3,793) (2,760) (7,407) (4,714)
Other (expense) income, net (797) 4,103 (4,428) 4,088
Total other (expense) income, net (1,018) 1,523 (5,429) (376)
Net loss before income taxes (13,089) (10,355) (29,771) (23,820)
Benefit from income taxes 1,484 213 2,194 639
Net loss (11,605) (10,142) (27,577) (23,181)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (3,039) (4,656) (6,948) (9,114)
Net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. $ (8,566) $ (5,486) $ (20,629) $ (14,067)
Net loss per share of Class A Common Stock:
Basic and diluted $ (0.08) $ (0.06) $ 0.19) $ (0.14)
Weighted average Class A Common Stock outstanding:
Basic and diluted 111,768,782 99,203,697 110,011,177 98,186,909

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(As Restated) (As Restated)
2023 2022 2023 2022
Net loss $ (11,605) $ (10,142) $ (27,577) $ (23,181)
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustments (124) (216) (104) (210)
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities (352) (143) (264) (452)
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate hedging instruments 1,111 1,694 (244) 3,340
Comprehensive loss (10,970) (8,807) (28,189) (20,503)
Less: Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (2,863) (4,076) (7,144) (8,047)
Comprehensive loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. $ (8,107) $ 4,731) $ (21,045) $ (12,456)

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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Balance at January 1, 2023, as
restated

Net loss, as restated
Other comprehensive loss
Vested incentive units

Issuance of Class A Common
Stock upon vesting of RSUs

Shares withheld related to net
share settlement

Effect of LLC unit exchanges, as
restated

Forfeited unvested incentive units
Equity-based compensation

Balance at March 31, 2023, as
restated

Net loss

Other comprehensive loss
Vested incentive units
Issuance of Class A Common
Stock upon vesting of RSUs
Shares withheld related to net
share settlement

Effect of LLC unit exchanges
Forfeited unvested incentive units
Equity-based compensation

Distributions to noncontrolling
interests

Balance at June 30, 2023

DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY
(amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

(Unaudited)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Comprehensi  Noncontrollin
Class A Class A Class B Class B Paid-In Accumulated ve g Total
Stock Amount Stock Amount Capital Deficit Income Interests Equity

105,138,273 $ 105 50,433,101 $ — $ 970,207 $ (25,062) $ 3,668 $ 533,027 $ 1,481,945
— — — — — (12,063) — (3,909) (15,972)
— — — — — — (875) (372) (1,247)

— — — — (505) — — 505 —

380,676 = = - 828 = = (828) =
(127,829) — — — (1,530) — — — (1,530)
4,771,545 5 (4,771,545) = 41,881 — — (52,352) (10,466)

— — (34,623) — — — — — —

— — — — 7,811 — — 3,317 11,128

110,162,665 $ 110 45,626,933 $ — $1,018692 $ (37,125) $ 2,793 $ 479,388 $ 1,463,858
- - - — — (8,566) — (3,039) (11,605)

— — — — — — 459 176 635

— — — — (390) — — 390 —

309,694 — — — 620 — — (620) —
(105,249) — — — (1,085) — — — (1,085)
2,718,054 3 (2,718,054) — 23,934 — — (29,817) (5,880)

- == (47,267) — — — — — —

— — — — 8,943 — — 3,420 12,363
= = = = = = = (2,827) (2,827)

113,085,164 $ 113 42,861,612 $ — $1,050,714 $ (45,691) $ 3,252 $ 447,071 $ 1,455,459




Balance at January 1, 2022, as
restated

Net loss

Other comprehensive income
Vested incentive units

Effect of LLC unit exchanges
Forfeited unvested incentive units
Equity-based compensation
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests

Balance at March 31, 2022, as
restated

Net loss
Other comprehensive income
Vested incentive units

Issuance of Class A Common
Stock upon vesting of RSUs

Effect of LLC unit exchanges
Forfeited unvested incentive units
Equity-based compensation

Distributions to noncontrolling
interests

Balance at June 30, 2022, as
restated

Accumulated

Additional Other
Comprehensi  Noncontrollin
Class A Class A Class B Class B Paid-In Accumulated ve g Total
Stock Amount Stock Amount Capital Deficit Income Interests Equity

97,030,095 97 58,244,627 888,992 (17,840) 62 628,525 1,499,836
— - — — (8,581) — (4,458) (13,039)

— — — — — 856 487 1,343

— — — (696) — — 696 —
544,302 1 (544,302) 5,071 — — (5,965) (893)

— — (33,549) — — — — —

— — — 4,377 — — 2,495 6,872
- — - - - - (258) (258)

97,574,397 $ 98 57,666,776 $ $ 897,744 $ (26,421) $ 918 $ 621,522 $ 1,493,861
— — — — (5,486) — (4,656) (10,142)

— — — — — 755 580 1,335

_ — — (358) — — 358 —

11,729 — — 45 — _ (45) _
2,898,589 2 (2,898,589) 24,764 — — (29,358) (4,592)

— — (22,807) — — — — —

— — — 5,852 — — 3,153 9,005
— — — — — — (5,029) (5,029)

100,484,715 $ 100 54,745,380 $ $ 928,047 $ (31,907) $ 1,673 $ 586,525 $ 1,484,438

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities:
Net loss

(amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of deferred contract costs
Equity-based compensation
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable
Non-cash restructuring charges
Tax receivable agreement remeasurement
Deferred income taxes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Deferred contract costs
Contingent consideration
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities:
Purchases of property, equipment, and other assets
Purchases of short-term investments
Maturities of short-term investments
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities:
Repayments of term loans
Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards
Payment of contingent consideration
Payments under tax receivable agreement
Payments of equity offering issuance costs
Member distributions
Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest
Income taxes
Acquisitions:
Net assets acquired, net of cash acquired
Initial cash investment in prior year
Contingent consideration
Net cash paid for acquisitions
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities:
Capital expenditures included in accrued expenses

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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Six Months Ended June 30,
(As Restated)
2023 2022
$ 27,577) $ (23,181)
959 1,252
24,763 29,774
6,030 3,991
23,491 15,877
351 351
466 6
298 1,023
4,698 (3,330)
(2,424) (677)
13,884 15,270
(3,571) 1,319
(9,107) (6,846)
— (6,400)
(3,023) (993)
(2,244) 1,678
26,994 29,114
(2,078) (1,577)
(132,799) (162,957)
102,747 44,000
— (56,499)
(32,130) (177,033)
(3,438) (3,438)
(2,615) —
— (1,100)
(246) —
(30) (1,299)
(2,827) (5,287)
(9,156) (11,124)
(14,292) (159,043)
(257) (253)
146,934 387,498
$ 132,385 $ 228,202
$ 7,091 $ 4,350
$ 136 $ —
$ — $ 97,499
— (40,000)
— (1,000)
$ — $ 56,499
$ 60 $ 3,500



DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Description of Business and Organization

Definitive Healthcare Corp. (the “Company”) was formed on May 5, 2021 as a Delaware corporation to facilitate an initial public offering (“IPO”)
and other related transactions to carry on the business of AIDH TopCo, LLC (“Definitive OpCo”). Following consummation of the Reorganization
Transactions as described in the Company’s 2022 Form 10-K/A, Definitive OpCo became a subsidiary of Definitive Healthcare Corp. The Company,
through its operating subsidiaries, provides comprehensive and up-to-date hospital and healthcare-related information and insight across the entire
healthcare continuum via a multi-tenant software-as-a-service (“SaaS”) platform which combines proprietary and public sources to deliver insights. The
Company is headquartered in Framingham, Massachusetts.

In connection with the TPO, the Company completed the following transactions (the “Reorganization Transactions™). Definitive OpCo entered into
an amended and restated limited liability company agreement (the “Amended LLC Agreement”) pursuant to which members of Definitive OpCo prior to
the IPO who continued to hold limited liability company interests (“LLC Units”) in Definitive OpCo following the consummation of the Reorganization
Transactions acquired the right to require Definitive OpCo to redeem all or a portion of their LLC Units for newly issued shares of Class A Common Stock
on a one-for-one basis. Until redeemed or exchanged, each LLC Unit is paired with one share of Definitive Healthcare Corp. Class B Common Stock. The
total shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding is equal to the number of vested LL.C Units outstanding, excluding LLC Units held by the Company.
Unvested LLC Units are paired with Class B Common Stock, which are issued but do not have voting rights and are deemed not outstanding until the
corresponding LLC Units have vested. Certain entities treated as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes that held LLC Units (individually, a
“Blocker Company” and collectively, the “Blocker Companies”) each merged with a merger subsidiary of Definitive Healthcare Corp., and subsequently
merged into Definitive Healthcare Corp. (the “Mergers”). The former shareholders of the Blocker Companies collectively received a number of shares of
Class A Common Stock in the Mergers equal to the number of LL.C Units held by the Blocker Companies prior to the Mergers.

Following the Reorganization Transactions, Definitive Healthcare Corp. became a holding company, with its sole material asset being a controlling
equity interest in Definitive OpCo. Definitive Healthcare Corp. operates and controls all of the business and affairs of Definitive OpCo, and through
Definitive OpCo and its subsidiaries, conducts its business. Accordingly, Definitive Healthcare Corp. consolidates the financial results of Definitive OpCo,
and reports the noncontrolling interests of unexchanged LLC Unit holders on its condensed consolidated financial statements.

In connection with the Reorganization Transactions and the TPO, Definitive Healthcare Corp entered into a tax receivable agreement. See Note 15.
Income Taxes.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and in conformity with rules applicable to quarterly financial information. Any reference in these notes to
applicable accounting guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative nongovernmental GAAP as found in the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”). The condensed consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2023 and for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 are unaudited and should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022. All adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, except as otherwise noted, considered necessary for a fair presentation of
the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for these interim periods have been included.

Refer to Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in the 2022 Form 10-K/A for the
Company’s significant accounting policies and estimates.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments, and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates include, but are not limited to,
revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, contingencies, valuations, useful lives of intangible assets acquired in business combinations, equity-
based compensation, and income taxes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Adoption of Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13—Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326) — Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments. This standard is intended to improve financial reporting by requiring earlier recognition of credit losses on financing receivables and other
financial assets in scope, such as trade receivables. The amendment is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company adopted
the update effective January 1, 2023 and the adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements for
the quarter ended June 30, 2023.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the FASB or other accounting standard setting bodies that the Company adopts as
of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, we do not believe that the adoption of recently issued standards have had or may have a material
impact on our condensed consolidated statements or disclosures.

Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

The financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, have been restated to reflect the correction of misstatements related to the
collection of sales taxes from sales of services to customers further described below (the “Misstatements”), along with other immaterial adjustments. The
Company also restated all amounts within the notes to the financial statements. A description of adjustments and their impact on the previously issued
financial statements are included below.

In the first quarter of 2023, the Company began a review of its sales tax positions, and related accounting matters, with the assistance of outside
consultants. As a result of the review, the Company determined during the second quarter of 2023 that sales in certain states were subject to sales tax and
that the Company had not assessed such sales tax on sales of its services to customers. The Company determined that it did not accrue sales taxes and
corrected these Misstatements by recording sales tax accruals through general and administrative expense as of the end of each affected period. These
accrual amounts assume that (i) customers who have not yet provided certificates or other documentation of exemption from sales tax are taxable, (ii)
maximum interest and penalty assessments may be imposed, and (iii) the Company will not receive waivers of interest and penalties or other benefits under
agreements it may obtain with jurisdictions from its outreach with voluntarily disclosures. The Company expects to make adjustments to the sales tax
liability in future periods as and if it obtains any waivers of interest and penalties or other benefits from its voluntary disclosures and as and if it obtains
additional documentation from customers supporting exemption from sales tax. The Misstatements that appeared in the previously issued financial
statements were material, and the Company has also corrected other immaterial errors, which are further described below.

As described in additional detail in the Explanatory Note in our 2022 Form 10-K/A, the Company restated its audited consolidated financial
statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, as well as the unaudited condensed consolidated quarterly financial
information for the quarterly periods in the fiscal years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, to reflect the correction of the Misstatements and other
immaterial adjustments, and to make corresponding disclosures. The Company also filed an Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-Q/A to amend the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the three months ended March 31, 2023 with the SEC on August 14, 2023, to restate its unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2023 and 2022.

A summary of the impacts of the Misstatements and other immaterial adjustments is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, 2022 Six Months Ended June 30, 2022

As previously As previously
(in thousands) reported As Restated reported As Restated
Net loss $ (9,579) $ (10,142) $ (22,636) $ (23,181)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (4,429) (4,656) (8,862) (9,114)
Net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. (5,150) (5,486) (13,774) (14,067)

As of
June 30, 2022

(in thousands) As previously reported As Restated
Total assets $ 2,122,855 $ 2,124,165
Total liabilities 634,155 639,727
Total equity 1,488,700 1,484,438
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The categories of restatement adjustments and their impacts on previously reported financial statements are described below:

a)

b)

9

d)

e

Sales Tax and Related Misstatements — Sales tax on sales of services to customers who were subject to sales tax, inclusive of maximum
penalties and interest, that was not previously accrued by the Company is corrected by an increase to accrued expenses and other current
liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets and an increase to general and administrative expenses on the condensed
consolidated statements of operations.

Related Impact on Tax Receivable Agreement ("TRA") — Any impact on tax receivable gains and losses due to the corrections in (a) above is reflected
as a change in the tax receivable agreement liability on the balance sheet and a change in other expense on the condensed consolidated statements of
operations.

Purchase Price Allocation Misstatement — In connection with the Company’s acquisition of Monocl Holding Company, the Company had previously
failed to record a deferred tax liability related to identified intangible assets of Monocl Holding Company. Therefore, the Company corrected the
opening purchase price of Monocl Holding Company to record an opening deferred tax liability with an offset to goodwill on the condensed
consolidated balance sheets. The opening deferred tax liability subsequently resulted in an increase in benefit from income taxes on the consolidated
statements of operations through the period ending March 31, 2022.

Related Impact on Noncontrolling Interests — Any impact on noncontrolling interests resulting from the allocation of net loss due to the corrections
in (a) and (c) above is reflected as (i) a change in the net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests on the condensed consolidated statements of
operations, and (ii) a change in noncontrolling interests on the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Currency Translation Adjustments — The Company made currency translation adjustments of $0.3 million between certain long-lived assets and total
equity on the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2022.

The following table sets forth the corrections in each of the line items affected in the consolidated statements of operations for each respective

period:
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

(in thousands) June 30, 2022 June 30, 2022

Increase in general and administrative expense (a) $ 664 $ 1,245
Increase in gain on remeasurement of TRA liability (other income) (b) 101 187
Increase in benefit from income taxes (c) — 513
Increase in net loss due to restatement items 563 545
Increase in net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests due to restatement items (d) 227 252
Increase in net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. due to restatement items 336 293

See footnote descriptions above

(a) Sales Tax

(b) Related Impact on TRA

(c) Purchase Price Allocation Misstatement
(d) Related Impact on Noncontrolling Interests
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(in thousands, except share amounts and per share data)
Revenue

Cost of revenue:
Cost of revenue exclusive of amortization
Amortization
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
Product development
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expense), net:
Interest income
Interest expense
Other expense, net
Total other expense, net
Loss before income taxes
Benefit from income taxes
Net loss
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp.

Net loss per share of Class A Common Stock:
Basic and diluted
Weighted average Common Stock outstanding:
Basic and diluted

Three Months Ended June 30, 2022

Six Months Ended June 30, 2022

As previously

As previously

reported As Restated reported As Restated
$ 54,548 $ 54,548 $ 104,672 $ 104,672
6,198 6,198 12,148 12,148
5,580 5,580 10,958 10,958
42,770 42,770 81,566 81,566
23,585 23,585 44,878 44,878
8,706 8,706 15,556 15,556
9,392 10,056 19,846 21,091
10,194 10,194 20,068 20,068
2,107 2,107 3,417 3,417
53,984 54,648 103,765 105,010
(11,214) (11,878) (22,199) (23,444)
180 180 250 250
(2,760) (2,760) (4,714) (4,714)
4,002 4,103 3,901 4,088
1,422 1,523 (563) (376)
(9,792) (10,355) (22,762) (23,820)
213 213 126 639
(9,579) (10,142) (22,636) (23,181)
(4,429) (4,656) (8,862) (9,114)
$ (5150) $ (5,486) $ (13,774) $ (14,067)
$ (0.05) $ (0.06) $ (0.14) $ (0.14)
99,203,697 99,203,697 98,186,909 98,186,909
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The following table sets forth the corrections in each of the line items affected in the condensed consolidated balance sheets for June 30, 2022:

Restatement

(in thousands) As previously reported Adjustments As Restated
Property and equipment, net $ 4,760 $ 64) $ 4,696
Operating lease right-of-use assets, net 10,552 (76) 10,476
Intangible assets, net 372,196 (181) 372,015
Goodwill 1,322,959 1,631 1,324,590
Total assets 2,122,855 1,310 2,124,165
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 14,682 6,572 21,254
Total current liabilities 119,188 6,572 125,760
Tax receivable agreements liability, net of current portion 155,900 (1,000) 154,900
Total liabilities 634,155 5,572 639,727
Additional paid-in capital 929,842 (1,795) 928,047
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,994 (321) 1,673
Accumulated deficit (31,451) (456) (31,907)
Noncontrolling interests 588,215 (1,690) 586,525
Total equity 1,488,700 (4,262) 1,484,438
Total liabilities and equity 2,122,855 1,310 2,124,165

The following table sets forth the corrections in each of the line items affected in the condensed consolidated statements of changes in total equity
for June 30, 2022:

Additional Paid-In Accumulated Other Accumulated Noncontrolling Total
(in thousands) Capital Comprehensive Income Deficit Interests Equity
As reported $ 929,842 $ 1,994 $ (31,451) $ 588,215 $ 1,488,700
Adjustment due to cumulative
error correction (1,795) (321) (456) (1,690) (4,262)
As restated $ 928,047 $ 1,673 $ (31,907) $ 586,525 $ 1,484,438

The Company did not present tables for quarterly adjustments within the consolidated statements of cash flows since all of the foregoing
adjustments only affected financial statement line items within cash flows from operating activities. The adjustments did not affect total cash flows from
operating activities, financing activities, or investing activities for any period presented.
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2. Acquisitions

On December 22, 2021, Definitive Healthcare, LLC (“DH, LLC”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Definitive Healthcare Corp. made a $40.0
million investment in Analytical Wizards Inc. (“AW” or “Analytical Wizards”), a privately held company. Analytical Wizards automates complex analytic
models using tools that expedite efficient big data mining through artificial intelligence and machine learning to uncover deep insights. In the transaction
the Company purchased Series B Convertible Preferred Stock of AW (“Series B Preferred Stock”), representing 35% ownership of AW, and an option to
acquire the remaining 65% ownership (the "Purchase Option") for $65.0 million. As of December 31, 2021, the Company determined it did not have a
controlling financial interest in AW at transaction close as the Company did not have the right to control the governing body of AW or have control through
other contractual rights. At December 31, 2021, because the Series B Preferred Stock and the Purchase Option did not have readily determinable fair
values, the Company elected to apply the measurement alternative and adjust the carrying value of the investments in AW for impairments and observable
prices in identical or similar equity securities of AW. The Company paid $40.0 million for the Series B Preferred Stock and Purchase Option, which was
allocated on a relative fair value basis such that the Series B Preferred Stock and Purchase Option had carrying values of $32.7 million and $7.3 million at
the time of the transaction, respectively. The Series B Preferred Stock was recorded in Investments in equity securities and the Purchase Option was
recorded in Other assets in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2021.

In February 2022, the Company completed the purchase the remaining 65% of AW’s equity for $65.0 million, net of cash acquired and an estimated
working capital adjustment and other customary purchase price adjustments (the “AW acquisition”). The Company’s previously held investment and
Purchase Option were remeasured at fair value as of the date the Purchase Option was exercised. The remeasurement had an immaterial impact on the
condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022. The Company has included the financial results of Analytical
Wizards in the condensed consolidated financial statements from February 18, 2022, the date of acquisition.

Upon the consummation of the acquisition, AW became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Definitive Healthcare Corp. The total consideration
for the initial investment and subsequent exercise of the Purchase Option was $99.4 million, consisting of $40.0 million for the initial investment paid in
December 2021, approximately $58.6 million of cash paid at closing, $0.2 million reimbursement from sellers for working capital adjustments, and up to
$5.0 million of contingent consideration, initially valued at $1.0 million. The contingent consideration, which relates to earn-out payments that may be paid
out, subject to meeting certain expense control metrics during the two-year period following the closing of the AW acquisition, has an estimated fair value
of $1.0 million as of the acquisition date. Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement governing the AW acquisition, $10.0 million of the consideration was
deposited into an escrow account to secure certain indemnification claims of DH, LLC. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their
estimated preliminary fair values and the results of operations were included in the Company’s condensed consolidated results as of the acquisition date.
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The consideration transferred for the transaction is summarized as follows:

(in thousands)

Initial cash investment in December 2021 $ 40,000
Cash consideration paid at closing 58,645
Working capital adjustment (202)
Contingent consideration 1,000
Purchase price $ 99,443

The contingent consideration was based on the achievement of certain expense control metrics during the two-year period following the acquisition
date, with potential earn-out payouts ranging from $0 to $5.0 million. The Company estimated the fair value of the contingent consideration to be $1.0
million as of February 18, 2022, based on the estimated achievement of the expense control metrics and time to payment. The Company estimated the fair
value of the contingent consideration to be $2.3 million at June 30, 2023. The contingent consideration was recorded in accrued expenses and other current
liabilities in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2023. Refer to Note 11. Fair Value Measurements.

The Company finalized the purchase price allocations of the AW acquisition during the first quarter of 2023. Acquisition-date fair values of assets
and liabilities pertaining to this business combination have been allocated as follows:

(in thousands)

Preliminary, as Measurement period

Purchase price allocation: originally reported adjustments As adjusted
Cash $ 2,146  $ — 3 2,146
Accounts receivable 3,575 (50) 3,525
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 506 341 847
Property and equipment 134 — 134
Intangible assets 46,000 — 46,000
Right-of-use asset, operating leases 832 — 832
Other assets — 703 703
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (485) (543) (1,028)
Deferred revenue (3,691) 326 (3,365)
Right-of-use liability, operating leases (832) — (832)
Deferred taxes (10,345) 67 (10,278)
Other liabilities (267) (633) (900)
Total assets acquired and liabilities assumed 37,573 211 37,784
Goodwill 62,072 (413) 61,659

Purchase price $ 99,645 $ (202) $ 99,443

As a result of the AW acquisition, the Company recorded goodwill, customer relationships, developed software, and tradename of $61.5 million,
$39.4 million, $6.1 million, and $0.5 million, respectively, as of the acquisition date. The goodwill recognized includes the fair value of the assembled
workforce, which is not recognized as an intangible asset separable from goodwill, and any expected synergies gained through the acquisition. The
Company determined that the goodwill resulting from the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes. All goodwill has been allocated to the Company’s
one reportable segment.
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Customer relationships represent the estimated fair value of the underlying relationships with the acquired entity’s business customers. The
Company valued customer relationships using the income approach, specifically the multi-period excess earnings method. Significant assumptions include
estimated attrition rates, discount rates, and tax rates reflecting the different risk profiles of the asset depending upon the acquisition. The value assigned to
customer relationships is $39.4 million and is amortized using the annual pattern of cash flows (economic value method) over the estimated 20-year life of
this asset.

The developed software represents AW’s two modules. Passport Promotional Analytics helps customers to optimize internal investment and
business management by focusing on driving incremental efficiencies in sales, cost management, profit optimization, and productive gains. Passport
Planning and Performance helps customers to analyze large data sets in order to proactively predict business outcomes. The Company used the income
approach, specifically the relief-from-royalty method, to determine the value of developed software. Significant assumptions include forecast of royalty
rate, tax rate, and discount rate. The developed software was valued at $6.1 million and is amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated
remaining useful life of 6 years.

The tradename represents the estimated fair value of the registered trade name associated with the AW corporate brand. The Company estimated the
fair value of the trademark using a relief from royalty method of the income approach. Significant assumptions include forecast of royalty rate, tax rate, and
discount rate. The trademark was valued at $0.5 million and is amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated remaining useful life of 5 years.

The amortization periods for the customer relationships, developed software, and tradenames are 20 years, 6 years, and 5 years, respectively. See
Note 7 for the estimated total intangible amortization expense during the next five years.

In connection with the acquisition, the Company recognized acquisition related costs of $1.3 million which were recorded within transaction
expenses in the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2022.

During the six months ended June 30, 2022, AW’s post-acquisition revenue and net loss on a standalone basis were not material.

Unaudited Pro Forma Supplementary Data:

Six Months Ended June
30, 2022
(in thousands) (As Restated)
Revenue $ 106,149
Net loss (22,681)

The unaudited pro forma supplementary data presented in the table above shows the effect of the AW acquisitions as if the transaction had occurred
on January 1, 2022.
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3. Revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from its arrangements with customers by type of service as it believes these categories best depict how the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors.

The following table represents a disaggregation of revenue from arrangements with customers for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022
Subscription services $ 59,274 $ 53,211 $ 117,791  $ 102,980
Professional services 1,683 1,337 2,367 1,692
Total revenue $ 60,957 $ 54,548 $ 120,158 $ 104,672

The opening and closing balances of the Company’s receivables, deferred contract costs and contract liabilities from contracts with customers are as
follows:

June 30, December 31,
(in thousands) 2023 2022
Accounts receivable, net $ 44519 $ 58,799
Deferred contract costs, current portion 11,889 10,387
Deferred contract costs, long-term 16,171 14,596
Deferred revenues 97,645 99,928

Deferred Contract Costs

A summary of the activity impacting the deferred contract costs for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and the year ended December 31, 2022 is
presented below:

Twelve Months
Six Months Ended Ended December 31,

(in thousands) June 30, 2023 2022
Balance at beginning of period $ 24983 % 18,547

Costs amortized (6,030) (8,816)

Additional amounts deferred 9,107 15,252
Balance at end of period 28,060 24,983
Classified as:

Current 11,889 10,387

Non-current 16,171 14,596
Total deferred contract costs (deferred commissions) $ 28,060 $ 24,983

Contract Liabilities

A summary of the activity impacting deferred revenue balances during the six months ended June 30, 2023 and for the year ended December 31,

2022 is presented below:
Twelve Months
Six Months Ended Ended December 31,

(in thousands) June 30, 2023 2022

Balance at beginning of period $ 99,928 $ 84,023
Revenue recognized (120,158) (222,653)
Additional amounts deferred 117,875 238,558
Balance at end of period $ 97,645 % 99,928
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Remaining Performance Obligations

Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations represents contracted revenue that has not yet been recognized, which includes
unearned revenue and unbilled amounts that will be invoiced and recognized as revenue in future periods. Transaction price allocated to remaining
performance obligations is influenced by several factors, including seasonality, the timing of renewals, and disparate contract terms. Revenue allocated to
remaining performance obligations represents contracted revenue that has not yet been recognized, which includes unearned revenue and backlog. The
Company’s backlog represents installment billings for periods beyond the current billing cycle. The majority of the Company’s noncurrent remaining
performance obligations will be recognized in the next 13 to 36 months.

The remaining performance obligations consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
(in thousands) 2023 2022
Current $ 176,521 $ 183,527
Non-current 87,405 93,464
Total $ 263,926 $ 276,991

4. Short-term Investments

Short-term investments classified as available-for-sale consisted of the following:

June 30, 2023
Gross Unrealized

(in thousands) Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized Gains Losses Fair Value
Short-term investments:
US Treasuries $ 102,241 $ — 3 (341) $ 101,900
Agency bonds 3,303 — (5) 3,298
Commercial paper 79,400 — (104) 79,296
Certificates of deposit 34,059 2 (40) 34,021
Total short-term investments $ 219,003 $ 2 9 (490) % 218,515

December 31, 2022
Gross Unrealized

(in thousands) Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized Gains Losses Fair Value
Short-term investments:
US Treasuries $ 59,849 $ 3 $ (129) $ 59,723
Agency bonds 6,450 4 2) 6,452
Commercial paper 95,831 29 (123) 95,737
Certificates of deposit 23,034 17 (24) 23,027
Total short-term investments $ 185,164  § 53 § (278) $ 184,939

All short-term investments had stated maturity dates of less than one year.
5. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,
(in thousands) 2023 2022
Accounts receivable $ 45526 $ 59,780
Unbilled receivable 527 881
46,053 60,661
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (1,534) (1,862)
Accounts receivable, net $ 44519 $ 58,799
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6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

June 30, December 31,

(in thousands) 2023 2022
Computers and software $ 6,748 $ 5,924
Furniture and equipment 1,162 1,204
Leasehold improvements 2,227 2,134

10,137 9,262

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (5,649) (4,798)

Property and equipment, net $ 4,488 % 4,464

Depreciation and amortization expense associated with property and equipment was $0.4 million and $0.8 million for the three months ended June
30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and $1.0 million and $1.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets, as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, consisted of the following:

June 30, 2023

Ca?rl:;'sijlg Accumulated Net Carrying
(in thousands) Amount Amortization Amount
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships $ 409,430 $ (145,993) $ 263,437
Developed technologies 56,908 (29,580) 27,328
Tradenames 35,893 (8,208) 27,685
Database 50,205 (42,861) 7,344
Total finite-lived intangible assets 552,436 (226,642) 325,794
Goodwill 1,324,733 — 1,324,733
Total goodwill and intangible assets $ 1,877,169  $ (226,642) $ 1,650,527
December 31, 2022
Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
(in thousands) (As Restated)
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships $ 409,430 $ (128,745) $ 280,685
Developed technologies 56,965 (25,514) 31,451
Tradenames 35,914 (7,150) 28,764
Database 50,215 (40,393) 9,822
Total finite-lived intangible assets 552,524 (201,802) 350,722
Goodwill 1,324,733 — 1,324,733
Total goodwill and intangible assets $ 1,877,257 % (201,802) $ 1,675,455

Amortization expense associated with finite-lived intangible assets was $12.3 million and $15.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023
and 2022, respectively, of which $3.1 million and $5.6 million was included in cost of revenue for the respective periods. Amortization expense associated
with finite-lived intangible assets was $24.8 million and $29.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, of which $6.4 million
and $11.0 million was included in cost of revenue for the respective periods.

Estimated total intangible amortization expense during the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

(in thousands)

2023, excluding the six months ended June 30, 2023 $ 25,016
2024 46,938
2025 42,372
2026 34,874
2027 28,559
Thereafter 148,035
Total $ 325,794

The Company determined it had one reporting unit. There was no impairment of goodwill in the six months ended June 30, 2023 or 2022.
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8. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:

(in thousands)

Payroll and payroll-related

Tax receivable agreement, current portion
Contingent consideration, current

Sales, franchise, and other taxes

Other

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

On January 12, 2023, the Company announced a restructuring plan intended to reduce operating costs, improve operating margins, and continue

June 30, December 31,
2023 2022

(As Restated)
$ 7,692 $ 11,961
7,450 —
2,250 —
10,801 11,738
5,045 3,156
$ 33,238 $ 26,855

advancing the Company’s ongoing commitment to profitable growth. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company incurred

restructuring and related charges of $0.3 million and $2.5 million, respectively, consisting primarily of severance payments, employee benefits, and related

cash expenses. These charges were recognized within Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses in the Company’s condensed consolidated

statements of operations. As of June 30, 2023, $2.1 million has been paid and the remaining $0.4 million is included in Accrued expenses and other current

liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The Company expects these remaining payments to be made over the next three months. In
addition, the Company expects to incur an additional $0.2 million in expense through the third quarter of 2023 associated with the restructuring plan.

In the first quarter of 2023, the Company began a review of its sales tax positions, and related accounting matters, with the assistance of outside
consultants. As a result of the review, the Company determined during the second quarter of 2023 that sales in certain states were subject to sales tax and
that the Company had not assessed such sales tax on sales of its services to customers. As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company has
accrued a sales tax accrual, which includes assumed maximum penalties and interest, of $8.8 million and $8.1 million, respectively.
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9. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively:

June 30, 2023
Unamortized debt

issuance costs / Total debt,
(in thousands) Principal financing costs net
2021 Term Loan $ 262,969 $ 1,772) $ 261,197
Less: current portion of long-term debt 12,031
Long-term debt $ 249,166

December 31, 2022
Unamortized debt

issuance costs / Total debt,
(in thousands) Principal financing costs net
2021 Term Loan $ 266,406 $ (2,047) $ 264,359
Less: current portion of long-term debt 8,594
Long-term debt $ 255,765

During the six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company repaid $3.4 million in outstanding principal of the 2021 Term Loan (as defined below).

2021 Credit Agreement

In September 2021, DH Holdings entered into a credit agreement (the “2021 Credit Agreement”) with Bank of America, N.A., as administrative
agent, the other lenders party thereto and the other parties specified therein. The 2021 Credit Agreement provides for (i) a $275.0 million term loan A
facility (the “2021 Term Loan”) and (ii) a $75.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2021 Revolving Line of Credit” and, together with the 2021 Term
Loan, collectively, the “2021 Credit Facilities”), the proceeds of which were used to repay a portion of the indebtedness outstanding under a previous credit
agreement. Both the 2021 Term Loan and the 2021 Revolving Line of Credit mature on September 17, 2026. The 2021 Credit Facilities include customary
affirmative, negative, and financial covenants. The 2021 Credit Facilities are guaranteed by all of DH Holdings' wholly owned domestic restricted
subsidiaries and AIDH Buyer, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and the direct parent company of DH Holdings, in each case, subject to
customary exceptions, and are secured by a lien on substantially all of the assets of DH Holdings and the guarantors, including a pledge of the equity of DH
Holdings, in each case, subject to customary exceptions.

The 2021 Term Loan is subject to annual amortization of principal, payable in equal quarterly installments on the last day of each fiscal quarter,
commencing on December 31, 2021 (the “Initial Amortization Date), equal to approximately 2.5% per annum of the principal amount of the term loans in
the first year and second year after the Initial Amortization Date and approximately 5.0% per annum of the principal amount of the term loans in the third
year, fourth year, and fifth year after the Initial Amortization Date. A balloon payment of approximately $220.0 million will be due at the maturity of the
2021 Term Loan. There was $263.0 million outstanding on the 2021 Term Loan at June 30, 2023.

DH Holdings is required to pay the lenders under the 2021 Credit Agreement an unused commitment fee of between 0.25% and 0.30% per annum
on the undrawn commitments under the 2021 Revolving Line of Credit, depending on the total net leverage ratio, quarterly in arrears. The expense is
included in interest expense in the statements of operations. There was no outstanding balance on the 2021 Revolving Line of Credit at June 30, 2023.

For both the 2021 Term Loan and 2021 Revolving Line of Credit, DH Holdings may elect from several interest rate options based on the LIBO Rate
or the Base Rate plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin is based on the total leverage ratio beginning in the fiscal year ended December 31,
2022. As of June 30, 2023, the effective interest rate was 6.95%.

On October 31, 2022, the Company amended the 2021 Credit Agreement to replace the LIBO rate with Term SOFR plus an applicable rate.

In connection with the 2021 Credit Agreement, the Company capitalized financing costs totaling $3.5 million, $2.8 million for the 2021 Term Loan
facility and $0.8 million for the 2021 Revolving Line of Credit. The financing costs associated with the 2021 Term Loan facility are recorded as a contra-
debt balance in Term loan, net of current portion in the condensed consolidated balance sheets and are amortized over the remaining life of the loan using
the effective interest method. The financing costs associated with the 2021 Revolving Line of Credit are recorded in Other assets in the condensed
consolidated balance sheet are amortized over the life of the arrangement. At June 30, 2023, the unamortized financing costs were $0.5 million.
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10. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Risk Management Objective of Using Derivatives

The Company is exposed to risks from changes in interest rates related to the 2021 Term Loan (See Note 9. Long-Term Debt). The Company uses
derivative financial instruments, specifically, interest rate swap contracts, in order to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. Interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over
the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Our primary objective in holding derivatives is to reduce the volatility of
cash flows associated with changes in interest rates. The Company does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative or trading purposes.

Cash Flow Hedges of Interest Rate Risk

The Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements, effective on March 31, 2022. Until October 31, 2022, the counterparties to each of
the agreements paid the Company interest at a floating rate on the notional amounts based on the one-month USD-LIBOR swap rate. On October 31, 2022,
in conjunction with the amendment to the 2021 Credit Agreement (See Note 9. Long-Term Debt), the Company amended the two interest rate swap
agreements to replace the LIBO rate with Term SOFR. As a result, subsequent to October 31, 2022, the counterparties paid and will continue to pay interest
at a floating rate based on Term SOFR.

As of June 30, 2023, the two outstanding interest rate swap agreements each had a notional value of $65.7 million with fixed interest rates of
1.909% and 1.9065%. Interest payments under the swaps are made monthly on a net settlement basis. The Company has not recorded any amounts due to
ineffectiveness for the period ended June 30, 2023. The notional value of each interest rate swap agreement is expected to match the corresponding
principal amount of a portion of our borrowings under the 2021 Term Loan. The swap agreements mature on March 31, 2025.

The derivative interest rate swaps are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges. Consequently, the change in the estimated fair value of the
effective portion of the derivative is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”) on our consolidated balance sheets and reclassified
to interest expense, net, when the underlying transaction has an impact on earnings. The Company expects to recognize approximately $4.2 million of net
pre-tax gains from accumulated other comprehensive income as a reduction of interest expense in the next twelve months associated with its interest rate
swaps. The Company recognizes derivative instruments and hedging activities on a gross basis as either assets or liabilities on the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets and measures them at fair value. Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of gain or loss recognition on the
hedging instrument with the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge. To receive hedge accounting treatment, all hedging
relationships are formally documented at the inception of the hedge, and the hedges must be highly effective in offsetting changes to future cash flows on
hedged transactions.

The fair values of the interest rate swaps and their respective locations in our condensed consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2023 and December
31, 2022 were as follows:

(in thousands)

Description Balance Sheet Location June 30, 2023 December 31, 2022
Short-term derivative asset Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 4209 $ 3,716
Long-term derivative asset Other assets 2,098 2,834
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11. Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”), defines fair value as the price that would be received for an asset, or paid to
transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date, and establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value as follows:

Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, including the Company’s own assumptions in determining fair value.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities subject to the three-level fair value hierarchy consist principally of cash and equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, long-term and short-term debt, and contingent consideration payable. The estimated fair value of cash
included in cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximates their carrying value due to due to their short maturities (less
than 12 months).

Debt

The Company’s short- and long-term debt are recorded at their carrying values in the condensed consolidated balance sheets, which may differ from
their respective fair values. The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company’s short- and long-term debt approximate their carrying values as
of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, based on interest rates currently available to the Company for similar borrowings.

Money market funds (included in cash and cash equivalents)

Money market funds are recorded at fair value using quoted market prices in active markets and are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

Short-term investments

The Company estimates the fair values of investments in U.S. treasuries, agency bond securities, commercial paper, and certificates of deposit using
level 2 inputs, taking into consideration valuations obtained from a third-party pricing service. The pricing services utilize industry standard valuation
models, including both income and market-based approaches, for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly, to estimate fair
value. These inputs include reported trades of and broker/dealer quotes on the same or similar securities, issuer credit spreads, market yield curves,
benchmark securities, prepayment/default projections based on historical data, and other observable inputs.

Derivative financial instruments

Currently, the Company uses interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. The valuation of these instruments is determined using widely accepted
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of
the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves, and implied volatilities.

To comply with the provisions of ASC 820, the Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both its own
nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty’s nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements.

Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the
credit valuation adjustments associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of
default by the Company and its counterparties. The Company has determined that the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments made
to its derivative contracts, which determination was based on the fair value of each individual contract, was not significant to the overall valuation. As a
result, all of its derivatives held as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

26



Contingent consideration

The deferred consideration that resulted from the acquisition of Analytical Wizards in the first quarter of 2022, which is subject to the meeting of
certain expense control metrics during the two-year period following the acquisition, is measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value was
estimated based on the present value of the amount expected to be paid at the end of the measurement period. At June 30, 2023, the fair value of the
contingent consideration was estimated to be $2.3 million and is included in Accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the condensed consolidated

balance sheet.

Earnout liabilities are classified within Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy because the methodology used to develop the estimated fair value includes
significant unobservable inputs reflecting management’s own assumptions. The table below presents a reconciliation of earnout liabilities measured at fair

value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

(in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period
Additions
Net change in fair value and other adjustments
Payments

Balance at end of period

June 30,
2023

$ 2,250 $ 7,500
— 1,000
— 1,250
— (7,500)

$ 2,250 $ 2,250

December 31,
2022
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Non-recurring fair value measurements

Certain assets and liabilities, including property, plant, and equipment, lease right-of-use assets, goodwill, and other intangible assets, are measured
at fair value on a non-recurring basis. These assets are remeasured when the derived fair value is below the carrying value on the Company’s condensed
consolidated balance sheet. For these assets, the Company does not periodically adjust carrying value to fair value except in the event of impairment. When
impairment has occurred, the Company measures the required charges and adjusts the carrying value as discussed in Note 2. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies of the notes to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2022 Form 10-K/A.

At June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows:

June 30, 2023

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 22,160 $ 22,160 $ — $ —
Commercial paper (maturities less than 90 days) 768 — 768 —
Short-term investments:
U.S. Treasuries 101,900 — 101,900 —
Agency bonds 3,298 — 3,298 —
Commercial paper 79,296 — 79,296 —
Certificates of deposit 34,021 — 34,021 —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Interest rate swap contracts 4,209 — 4,209 —
Other assets:
Interest rate swap contracts 2,098 — 2,098 —
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities:
Contingent consideration 2,250 — — 2,250

December 31, 2022

(in thousands) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 39,523 % 39,523  §$ — 3 —
Commercial paper (maturities less than 90 days) 2,276 — 2,276 —
Certificates of deposit (maturities less than 90
days) 1,549 — 1,549 —
Agency bonds (maturities less than 90 days) 768 — 768 —
Short-term investments:
U.S. Treasuries 59,723 — 59,723 —
Agency bonds 6,452 — 6,452 —
Commercial paper 95,737 — 95,737 —
Certificates of deposit 23,027 — 23,027 —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets:
Interest rate swap contracts 3,716 — 3,716 —
Other assets:
Interest rate swap contracts 2,834 — 2,834 —
Liabilities:
Other long-term liabilities:
Contingent consideration 2,250 — — 2,250

At June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, except for the contingent consideration noted above, the estimated fair values of all of the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities subject to the three-level fair value hierarchy approximated their carrying values due to their short-term maturities (less than
12 months).
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12. Noncontrolling Interest

Definitive Healthcare Corp. operates and controls all of the business and affairs of Definitive OpCo, and through Definitive OpCo and its
subsidiaries, conducts its business. Accordingly, Definitive Healthcare Corp. consolidates the financial results of Definitive OpCo, and reports the
noncontrolling interests of its consolidated subsidiaries on its condensed consolidated financial statements based on the LLC Units held by Continuing Pre-
IPO LLC Members other than Definitive Healthcare Corp. Changes in Definitive Healthcare Corp.'s ownership interest in its consolidated subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. As such, future redemptions or direct exchanges of LLC Units by such Continuing Pre-IPO LLC Members will result
in a change in ownership and reduce or increase the amount recorded as noncontrolling interests and increase or decrease additional paid-in capital in the
Company’s Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the six months ended June 30, 2023, 7,489,599 LLC Units held by Continuing Pre-IPO LLC Members were exchanged for shares of Class A
Common Stock of Definitive Healthcare Corp. pursuant to the terms of the Amended LL.C Agreement. In addition, 690,370 restricted stock units vested
and 233,078 shares were withheld to cover withholding tax obligations, resulting in the net issuance of 457,292 shares of Class A Common Stock of
Definitive Healthcare Corp., for which LLC Units were issued on a one-for-one basis pursuant to the Definitive OpCo second amended and restated limited
liability company agreement entered into in connection with the IPO.

As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, Definitive Healthcare Corp. held ownership interests in Definitive OpCo of 73.1% and 68.2%,
respectively, and noncontrolling interests of 26.9% and 31.8%, respectively.

13. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table summarize the changes in accumulated balances of other comprehensive income for the three and six months ended June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2023 Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Unrealized Unrealized Foreign Unrealized Foreign
Gain (Loss) on Loss on Currency Gain (Loss) on Currency
Cash Flow Investment Translation Cash Flow Unrealized Loss Translation
(in thousands) Hedges s Adjustments Total Hedges on Investments Adjustments Total
Beginning balance $ 335 $  (73)$ (490)$ 2,793 $ 4,307 $ (135) $ (504)$ 3,668
Other comprehensive income (loss)
before reclassifications 1,549 (253) (90) 1,206 1,205 (191) (76) 938
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (747) — — (747) (1,354) — — (1,354)
Ending balance $ 4158 $ (326)$ (580)$ 3252 $ 4,158 $ (326) $ (580)$ 3,252
Three months ended June 30, 2022, as restated Six months ended June 30, 2022, as restated
Foreign Foreign
Unrealized Gain Currency Unrealized Unrealized Currency
on Cash Flow Unrealized Loss Translation Gain on Cash Loss on Translation
(in thousands) Hedges on Investments Adjustments Total Flow Hedges  Investments Adjustments Total
Beginning balance $ 1,049 $ (197) $ 66 $ 918 § — $ — 3 62 $ 62
Other comprehensive income (loss)
before reclassifications 825 (93) (253) 479 $ 1,874 $ (290) $ (249) 1,335
Amounts reclassified from AOCI 276 — — 276 276 — — 276
Ending balance $ 2,150 $ (290) $ (187)$ 1,673 $ 2,150 $ (290) $ (187) $ 1,673
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14. Equity-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes equity-based compensation expense associated with awards granted under equity incentive plans. Equity-based
compensation expense is allocated to all departments based on the recipients of the compensation. A summary of the expense by line item in the condensed
consolidated statements of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, is provided in the following table.

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
(in thousands) 2023 2022 2023 2022
Cost of revenue $ 296 $ 230 $ 554 $ 462
Sales and marketing 2,920 5,056 5,569 8,802
Product development 3,319 1,841 6,330 3,130
General and administrative 5,828 1,878 11,038 3,483
Total compensation expense $ 12,363  $ 9,005 $ 23,491 $ 15,877
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15. Income Taxes

During the six months ended June 30, 2023, management performed an assessment of the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Management
determined, based on the accounting standards applicable to such assessment, that there was sufficient negative evidence as a result of the Company’s
scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities and cumulative losses to conclude it was more likely than not that its deferred tax assets would not be realized
and has recorded a valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets that are not more likely than not to be realized. In the event that management was to
determine that the Company would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, an adjustment to the
valuation allowance would be made which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

As of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company has recorded net deferred tax liabilities of $78.6 million and $75.6 million, respectively.
The net deferred tax liability reflects a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets that are more likely than not to not be realized as well as reversing
taxable temporary differences that will not provide a source of taxable income due to attribute limitation rules.

The Company recognizes uncertain income tax positions when it is more-likely-than-not the position will be sustained upon examination. As of June
30, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company has not identified any uncertain tax positions and has not recognized any related reserves.

The Company's effective tax rate was 11.3% and 2.1%, as restated, for the three months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and 7.4% and
2.7%, as restated, for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the statutory tax rate of
21% due to the valuation allowance recorded, foreign tax rates that differ from the U.S. statutory tax rate, and partnership income that is not taxed.

As described above, the Company has a valuation allowance as it has not yet attained a sustained level of profitability and the objectively verifiable
negative evidence outweighed the positive evidence. The income of the Company’s subsidiaries is generally subject to corporate-level taxation, and certain
of these subsidiaries have a valuation allowance whereas others do not. The effective tax rates for each period generally arise from the tax provisions for
Company subsidiaries without valuation allowances, and the impact of any revaluation of deferred taxes arising from changes in the states effective tax
rates. Such revaluations are caused by changes in state apportionment factors arising from fluctuations in the mix of sales, property and payroll by state,
certain state tax rate changes and certain state tax incentives.

Tax Receivable Agreement

Pursuant to the Company’s election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”), the Company expects to obtain an increase in its
share of the tax basis in the net assets of Definitive OpCo when LLC Interests are redeemed or exchanged by other members. The Company intends to treat
any redemptions and exchanges of LLC Interest as direct purchases of LLC Interests for U.S. federal income tax purposes. These increases in tax basis may
reduce the amounts that would otherwise be paid in the future to various tax authorities. They may also decrease gains (or increase losses) on future
dispositions of certain capital assets to the extent tax basis is allocated to those capital assets.

In connection with the IPO, the Company entered into a Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”) among Definitive Healthcare Corp., Definitive OpCo,
and the TRA Parties and has recorded a liability under the TRA of $170.7 million and $155.1 million, as restated, as of June 30, 2023 and December 31,
2022, respectively. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, the Company recognized a TRA remeasurement loss of $1.1 million and $4.7
million, respectively. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, the Company recognized a TRA remeasurement gain of $3.5 million, as
restated, and $3.3 million, as restated, respectively. Losses and gains in both periods were recognized within Other (expense) income, net in the Company’s
condensed consolidated statements of operations. Under the TRA, the Company generally will be required to pay to the TRA Parties 85% of the amount of
cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state, or local tax that the Company actually realizes directly or indirectly (or are deemed to realize in certain
circumstances) as a result of (i) certain tax basis adjustments resulting from (a) acquisitions by the Company of LLC Units from pre-IPO holders in
connection with the TPO, and (b) subsequent redemptions or exchanges of LLC Units by holders for Class A Common Stock or other consideration, (ii)
certain tax attributes acquired by the Company from the Blocker Companies in the Reorganization Transactions, and (iii) certain payments made under the
TRA. The Company expects to benefit from the remaining 15% of any tax benefits that it may actually realize. To the extent that the Company is unable to
timely make payments under the TRA for any reason, such payments generally will be deferred and will accrue interest until paid.
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16. Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share of Class A Common Stock is computed by dividing net income attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. by the weighted-
average number of shares of Class A Common Stock outstanding during the period, excluding unvested equity awards and subsidiary member units not
exchanged. Diluted earnings per share of Class A Common Stock is calculated by dividing net income attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp., adjusted
for the assumed exchange of all potentially dilutive securities by the weighted-average number of shares of Class A Common Stock outstanding.

The following table sets forth reconciliations of the numerators and denominators used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share of Class A
Common Stock for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
(in thousands) (As Restated) (As Restated)
Numerator:
Net loss $ (11,605) $ (10,142) $ (27,577) $ (23,181)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (3,039) (4,656) (6,948) (9,114)
Net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. $ (8,566) $ (5,486) $ (20,629) (14,067)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share of Class A Common Stock for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022 (per share amounts unaudited).

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
(in th ds, except ber of shares and per share amounts) (As Restated) (As Restated)
Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
Numerator:
Allocation of net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare
Corp. $ (8,566) $ (5,486) $ (20,629) $ (14,067)
Denominator:
Weighted average number of shares of Class A Common Stock
outstanding 111,768,782 99,203,697 110,011,177 98,186,909
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ 0.08) $ (0.06) $ (0.19) $ (0.14)

Shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock do not participate in the earnings or losses of Definitive Healthcare Corp. and are therefore not
participating securities. As such, separate presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share of Class B Common Stock under the two-class method has
not been presented.

The following table presents potentially dilutive securities excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share for the period presented
because their effect would have been anti-dilutive:

Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2022
Definitive OpCo LLC Units (vested and unvested) 42,861,612 54,745,380
Restricted Stock Units 6,049,898 3,762,621

17. Related Parties

The Company has engaged in revenue transactions within the ordinary course of business with entities affiliated with its private equity sponsors and
with members of the Company’s board of directors. During each of the three months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 the Company recorded revenue from
related parties of $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively. During each of the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Company recorded revenue
from related parties of $0.7 million and $0.4 million, respectively. There were no receivables for related party revenue transactions at June 30, 2023.
Receivables for related party revenue transactions amounted to $0.8 million at December 31, 2022.
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18. Subsequent Events

On July 17, 2023, the Company signed a definitive agreement to acquire Populi, Inc. (“Populi”), a privately-held company incorporated in
Delaware. Populi is a small healthcare analytics company that uses artificial intelligence-driven software to deliver accessible analytics-as-a-service
through integrations and API’s to the data science platforms that providers use every day. Consideration for Populi consists of $52.0 million in cash, subject
to working capital adjustments, with the potential for additional consideration contingent upon achievement of certain performance-based milestones in
2024 and 2025.

On July 21, 2023, the Company completed the purchase of Populi. The initial accounting for the business combination is incomplete as a result of
the timing of the acquisition.

On July 27, 2023, the Company committed to a restructuring plan intended to reduce operating costs, improve operating margins, and continue
advancing the Company’s ongoing commitment to profitable growth. The Company estimates that in the third quarter of 2023 it will incur pre-tax cash
restructuring and related charges of approximately $1.8 million to $2.0 million, consisting primarily of severance payments, employee benefits, and related
cash expenses, as well as an immaterial non-cash stock-based compensation charge related to the vesting of share-based awards for employees who are
terminated. The Company expects these actions will be substantially complete by the end of the third quarter of 2023.
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ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our unaudited interim
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and with our audited Consolidated Financial
Statements, “Risk Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in our 2022 Form
10-K/A.

As discussed in “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may materially differ from those discussed in such forward-looking statements. Factors
that could cause or contribute to these differences include, but are not limited to, those identified below and those discussed in “Risk Factors” under Part
II, Item 1A in this Quarterly Report and in Part I, Item 1A of our 2022 Form 10-K/A.

Overview

Definitive Healthcare is a leading provider of healthcare commercial intelligence. Our solutions provide accurate and comprehensive information on
healthcare providers and their activities to help our customers optimize everything from product development to go-to-market planning and sales and
marketing execution. Delivered through our software as a service (“SaaS”) platform, our intelligence has become important to the commercial success of
our approximately 3,000 customers as of June 30, 2023. We generally define a customer as a company that maintains one or more active paid subscriptions
to our platform.

Our customers include biopharmaceutical and medical device companies, healthcare information technology companies, healthcare providers, and
other diversified companies, such as staffing firms, commercial real estate firms, financial institutions, and other organizations seeking commercial success
in the attractive but complex healthcare ecosystem. Within these organizations, our platform is leveraged by a broad set of functional groups, including
sales, marketing, clinical research & product development, strategy, talent acquisition, and physician network management. We offer access to our platform
on a subscription basis, and we generate substantially all of our revenue from subscription fees.

We were founded in 2011 by our Executive Chairman, Jason Krantz. Mr. Krantz founded the company to provide healthcare commercial intelligence
that enables companies that compete within or sell into the healthcare ecosystem to make better, informed decisions and be more successful. Over time, we
have expanded our platform with new intelligence modules, innovative analytics, workflow capabilities, and additional data sources.

Any company selling or competing within the healthcare ecosystem is a potential customer for us and contributes to our estimated current total
addressable market of over $10 billion. In total, we have identified more than 100,000 potential customers that we believe could benefit from our platform.
Restatement

As described in the Note 1 of “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,” we have restated our consolidated financial statements and Item 2.
Management’s Discussion of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2022.
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Recent Developments
Acquisitions

On July 17, 2023, we signed a definitive agreement to acquire Populi, Inc. (“Populi”), a privately-held company incorporated in Delaware. Populi is
a small healthcare analytics company that uses artificial intelligence-driven software to deliver accessible analytics-as-a-service through integrations and
APT’s to the data science platforms that providers use every day. Consideration for Populi consists of $52.0 million in cash, subject to working capital
adjustments, with the potential for additional consideration contingent upon achievement of certain performance-based milestones in 2024 and 2025.

On July 21, 2023, we completed the purchase of Populi. The initial accounting for the business combination is incomplete as a result of the timing of
the acquisition.

Restructuring charges

On January 12, 2023, we announced a restructuring plan intended to reduce operating costs, improve operating margins, and continue advancing our
ongoing commitment to profitable growth. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, we incurred restructuring and related charges of $0.3
million and $2.5 million, respectively, consisting primarily of severance payments, employee benefits, and related cash expenses. These charges were
recognized within Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses in our condensed consolidated statements of operations. We expect to incur an
additional $0.2 million of expense through the third quarter of 2023 associated with the restructuring plan.

On July 27, 2023, we committed to a subsequent restructuring plan intended to reduce operating costs, improve operating margins, and continue
advancing our ongoing commitment to profitable growth. We estimate that in the third quarter of 2023 we will incur pre-tax cash restructuring and related
charges of approximately $1.8 million to $2.0 million, consisting primarily of severance payments, employee benefits, and related cash expenses, as well as
an immaterial non-cash stock-based compensation charge related to the vesting of share-based awards for employees who are terminated. We expect these
actions will be substantially complete by the end of the third quarter of 2023.

Macroeconomic Conditions

As a corporation with a global footprint, we are subject to risks and exposures caused by significant events and their macroeconomic impacts,
including, but not limited to, the Russia-Ukraine war, global geopolitical tension, and more recently, rising inflation and interest rates, volatility in the
capital markets, liquidity concerns at, and failures of, banks and other financial institutions, and related market uncertainty. We continuously monitor the
direct and indirect impacts, and the potential for future impacts, of these circumstances on our business and financial results, as well as the overall global
economy and geopolitical landscape. While our revenue and earnings have historically been relatively predictable as a result of our subscription-based
business model, the potential implications of these macroeconomic events on our business, results of operations, and overall financial position, particularly
in the long term, introduce additional uncertainty.

Our current and prospective customers and their business spendings are impacted by worsening macroeconomic conditions to varying degrees and
as a result, in some cases we are observing deal cycles lengthen for new and existing customers, in part as a result of more stringent approval processes, as
well as a significant number of deferred purchasing decisions. We are also experiencing heightened customer churn. These trends have been particularly
pronounced in the life science and provider markets. We expect this will impact our growth unless macroeconomic conditions improve. We are continuing
to evaluate these and other past and potential future direct and indirect impacts on our business and results of operations.
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Key Factors Affecting Our Performance

We believe that the growth and future success of our business depend on many factors, including the following:

Acquiring New Customers

We plan to continue to organically grow the number of customers that use our platform by increasing demand for our platform and penetrating our
addressable market. Our results of operations and growth prospects will depend, in part, on our ability to attract new customers. We intend to drive new
customer acquisition with our efficient go-to-market engine by continuing to invest in our sales and marketing efforts and developing new use cases for our
platform. Enterprise Customers represent the majority of our ARR and are a key focus of our go-to-market programs. As of June 30, 2023 and December
31, 2022, we had approximately 3,000 customers. Our total customer and Enterprise Customer counts decreased slightly over the course of the quarter,
reflecting the impact of macroeconomic conditions on our prospective customers. We have identified more than 100,000 potential customers across the
healthcare ecosystem that we believe could benefit from our platform. Our ability to attract and acquire new customers is dependent on the strength of our
platform and effectiveness of our go-to-market strategy, as well as macroeconomic factors and their impact on our potential customers’ business spending.

Expanding Relationships with Existing Customers

We believe there is a significant opportunity to generate additional revenue from our existing customer base of approximately 3,000 customers as of
June 30, 2023.

Our customers have historically increased their spending by adding intelligence modules and expanding use-cases across departments. Our
customers are typically assigned to one of our vertically-focused teams, which is responsible for driving usage and increasing adoption of the platform,
identifying expansion opportunities, and driving customer renewals. Real-time input from these customer centric teams feeds directly into our product
innovation teams, enhancing the development of new intelligence modules. We believe this feedback loop and our ability to innovate creates significant
opportunities for continual existing customer expansion. Our ability to generate additional revenue from existing customers is also subject to such existing
customers’ business spending trends and the impact of macroeconomic conditions thereon.

Our success in expanding usage of our platform with our existing customers is demonstrated by our NDR, which is further described below.

Continuing to Innovate and Expand Our Platform

The growth of our business is driven in part by our ability to apply our deep healthcare domain expertise to innovate and expand our platform. We
have continually created new products since our founding in 2011. We plan to continue to invest significantly into our engineering and research and
development efforts to enhance our capabilities and functionality and facilitate the expansion of our platform to new use cases and customers. In addition,
we work to continuously release updates and new features. While we are primarily focused on organic investments to drive innovation, we will also
evaluate strategic acquisitions and investments that further expand our platform.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to our results determined in accordance with GAAP, we believe certain non-GAAP measures are useful in evaluating our operating
performance. Non-GA AP measures include, but are not limited to, Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Gross Margin, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted
EBITDA Margin. We believe these non-GAAP measures are useful to investors because they eliminate certain items that affect period-over-period
comparability and provide consistency with past financial performance and additional information about our underlying results and trends by excluding
certain items that may not be indicative of our business, results of operations, or outlook.

We view Adjusted Gross Profit, Adjusted Gross Margin, Adjusted EBITDA, and Adjusted EBITDA Margin as operating performance measures. As
such, we believe the most directly comparable GAAP financial measures to Adjusted Gross Profit and Adjusted Gross Margin are GAAP Gross Profit and
GAAP Gross Margin, and the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure to Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin is GAAP net loss.

Non-GAAP measures are supplemental financial measures of our performance and should not be considered substitutes for net loss, gross profit, or
any other measure derived in accordance with GAAP. This information should be read only in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with GAAP. There are limitations to these non-GAAP financial measures because they are not prepared in accordance with GAAP
and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies due to potential differences in methods of calculation and items or events being
adjusted. In addition, other companies may use different measures to evaluate their performance, all of which could reduce the usefulness of our non-GAAP
financial measures as tools for comparison. A reconciliation is provided below for each non-GAAP financial measure to the most directly comparable
financial measure stated in accordance with GAAP.

Adjusted Gross Profit and Adjusted Gross Margin

We define Adjusted Gross Profit as revenue less cost of revenue, excluding acquisition-related depreciation and amortization, and stock-based
compensation costs. Adjusted Gross Profit differs from Gross Profit, in that Gross Profit includes the impact of acquisition-related depreciation and
amortization expense and stock-based compensation. We exclude acquisition-related depreciation and amortization expense as they have no direct
correlation to the cost of operating our business on an ongoing basis. Gross Margin is defined as Gross Profit as a percentage of revenue and Adjusted
Gross Margin is defined as Adjusted Gross Profit as a percentage of revenue. These are key metrics used by management and our board of directors to
assess our operations.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Gross Profit and Gross Margin to Adjusted Gross Profit and Adjusted Gross Margin for the periods
presented:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
% of

(in thousands) Amount % of Revenue Amount % of Revenue Amount Revenue Amount % of Revenue
Reported gross profit and
margin $ 49,789 82% $ 42,770 78% $ 97,084 81% $ 81,566 78 %
Amortization of intangible

assets acquired through

business combinations 2,314 4% 5,302 10% 4,604 4% 10,404 10%
Equity compensation costs 296 — 230 — 554 — 462 —
Adjusted gross profit and margin $ 52,399 86% $ 48,302 89% $ 102,242 85% $ 92,432 88%
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Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin

We present “Adjusted EBITDA” as a measure of our operating performance. EBITDA is defined as earnings before (i) debt-related costs, including
interest expense and loss from extinguishment of debt, (ii) interest income, (iii) provision for taxes, and (iv) depreciation and amortization. Management
further adjusts EBITDA in its presentation of Adjusted EBITDA to exclude (i) other (income) expense, (ii) equity-based compensation, (iii) acquisition,
integration, and restructuring expenses, and (iv) other non-recurring and one-time expenses. We exclude these items because they are by nature non-cash,
non-recurring, and/or unrelated to our core operations, and therefore we do not believe them to be representative of ongoing operational performance.
Adjusted EBITDA Margin is defined as Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue. Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are key metrics
used by management and our board of directors to assess the profitability of our operations. We believe these metrics provide useful measures to investors
to assess our operating performance and in measuring the profitability of our operations on a consolidated level.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Net loss to Adjusted EBITDA for the periods presented:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
(As Restated) (As Restated)
% of % of
(in thousands) Amount Revenue Amount % of Revenue Amount Revenue Amount % of Revenue
Net loss and margin $ (11,605) (19)%$ (10,142) (19)%$ (27,577) (23)%$ (23,181) (22)%
Interest expense, net 221 — 2,580 5% 1,001 1% 4,464 4%
Benefit from income taxes (1,484) 2)% (213) — (2,194) — (639) —
Depreciation & amortization 12,778 21% 15,774 29% 25,722 21% 31,026 30%
EBITDA and margin (90) — 7,999 15% (3,048) (3)% 11,670 11%
Other expense (income), net © 797 1% (4,103) (8)% 4,428 4% (4,088) (4)%
Equity-based compensation ® 12,363 20% 9,005 17% 23,491 20% 15,877 15%
Transaction, integration, and
restructuring expenses © 3,571 6% 2,107 4% 6,161 5% 3,417 3%
Other non-recurring items @ 600 1% 1,259 2% 1,876 2% 3,436 3%
Adjusted EBITDA and margin  $ 17,241 28% $ 16,267 30% $ 32,908 27% $ 30,312 29%

(@)  Primarily represents foreign exchange and Tax Receivable Agreement (“TRA”) liability remeasurement gains and losses.

(b)  Equity-based compensation represents non-cash compensation expense recognized in association with equity awards made to employees and
directors.

(c)  Transaction and integration expenses primarily represent legal, accounting, and consulting expenses and fair value adjustments for contingent
consideration related to our acquisitions. Restructuring expenses relate to our restructuring plan announced in the first quarter of 2023 and
impairment and restructuring charges related to office relocations.

(d)  Non-recurring items represent expenses driven by events that are typically by nature one-time, non-operational, and unrelated to our core operations.
These expenses are comprised primarily of professional fees related to financing, capital structure changes, and other non-recurring set-up costs
related to public company operations. In addition, these expenses include sales tax accrual charges recorded during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2023, of $0.2 million and $0.6 million, respectively and during the three and six months ended June 30, 2022, of $0.7 million and $1.2
million, respectively, after we became aware of a state sales tax liability for sales taxes that we may have been required to collect from customers in
2023 and in certain previous years, which amounts include assumed maximum penalties and interest.
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Key Metrics

‘We monitor the following key metrics to help us evaluate our business performance, identify financial trends, formulate business plans, and make
strategic operational decisions.

Net Dollar Retention Rate ("NDR")

We believe the growth in use of our platform by our existing customers is an important measure of the health of our business and our future growth
prospects. We evaluate and report on our NDR on an annual basis to measure this growth. We define NDR as the percentage of ARR retained from existing
customers across a defined period, after accounting for upsell, down-sell, pricing changes, and churn. We calculate NDR as beginning ARR for a period,
plus (i) expansion ARR (including, but not limited to, upsell and pricing increases), less (ii) churn (including, but not limited to, non-renewals, and
contractions), divided by (iii) beginning ARR for a period.

Unfavorable macroeconomic challenges are elongating deal cycles as customers implement more stringent approval processes or delay spending
decisions, which impacts revenue from our existing customers, including upsells. We have also experienced a significant number of deferred purchasing
decisions and heightened customer churn, particularly in the life science and provider markets. As a result, we expect our NDR rates for 2023 to be reduced
slightly relative to year end 2022 unless macroeconomic conditions improve.

Current Remaining Performance Obligations ("cRPO")

‘We monitor current remaining performance obligations as a metric to help us evaluate the health of our business and identify trends affecting our
growth. cRPO represents the amount of contracted future revenue that has not yet been recognized, including both deferred revenue and non-cancelable
contracted amounts that will be invoiced and recognized as revenue within the next twelve months. cRPO is not necessarily indicative of future revenue
growth. In addition to total contract volume, cRPO is influenced by several factors, including seasonality, disparate contract terms, and the timing of
renewals, because renewals tend to be most frequent in the fourth quarter. Due to these factors, it is important to review cRPO in conjunction with revenue
and other financial metrics.

Our cRPO will continue to be impacted by macroenvironment challenges, which have resulted in elongating deal cycles as customers implement
more stringent approval processes or push out final decisions to later periods. We have also observed cancelations due to the impacts of such challenges on
the financial condition of our customers, particularly in the life science and provider markets. We expect this trend to reduce our revenue growth rate for
2023 relative to 2022.

The following table presents cRPO as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022:

June 30, December 31,
(in thousands) 2023 2022
Current $ 176,521  $ 183,527
Non-current 87,405 93,464
Total $ 263,926 $ 276,991

Impact of Acquisitions

We seek to enhance our platform, data and business through internal development and through acquisitions of and investments in businesses that
broaden and strengthen our platform. Acquisitions can result in transaction costs, amortization expenses and other adjustments as purchase accounting
requires that all assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recorded at fair value on the acquisition date. Refer to Note 2. Acquisitions in the notes to our
condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for further details.
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Components of our Results of Operations

Revenue

For the six months ended June 30, 2023, we derived approximately 98% of our revenue from subscription services and the remainder from
professional services. Our subscription services consist primarily of subscription fees for access to our platform. Our subscription contracts typically have a
term ranging from 1 to 3 years and are non-cancellable. We typically bill for services in advance annually, and we typically require payment at the
beginning of each annual period. Our subscription revenue is recognized ratably over the contract term. Our professional services revenue typically is
derived from non-recurring consulting services which are generally capable of being distinct and can be accounted for as separate performance obligations.
Revenue related to these professional services is recognized at the time the services are performed.

Because of the macroenvironment challenges described above, we expect a reduction in our revenue growth rate for 2023 relative to 2022.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue, excluding amortization of acquired technology and data, consists of direct expenses related to the support and
operations of our Saa$S platform, such as data and infrastructure costs, personnel costs for our professional services, customer support, and data research
teams, such as salaries, bonuses, stock-based compensation, and other employee-related benefits, as well as allocated overheads. We anticipate that we will
continue to invest in cost of revenue and that cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue will modestly increase as we add to our existing intelligence
modules and invest in new products and data sources. Cost of data is included in the cost of revenue and is a fundamental driver of innovation.

Amortization. Includes amortization expense for technology and data acquired in business combinations and asset purchase agreements. We
anticipate that amortization will only increase if we make additional acquisitions in the future.

At the beginning of 2023, additional third-party data sources were rolled out to our customers, which resulted in an increase of cost of revenue.

Gross Profit

Gross profit is revenue less cost of revenue, and gross margin is gross profit as a percentage of revenue. Gross profit and gross margin have been and
will continue to be affected by various factors, including the costs associated with third-party data and third-party hosting services, leveraging economies of
scale, and the extent to which we introduce new intelligence modules, features, or functionality, or expand our customer support and service organizations,
hire additional personnel, or complete additional acquisitions. We expect that our gross profit and gross margin will fluctuate from period to period
depending on the interplay of these various factors.

While we expect our overall gross profit to increase for 2023 due to anticipated revenue growth, our gross margin is expected to modestly decrease
due to the expansion of data sources as described above.

Operating Expenses

The most significant component of our operating expenses is personnel costs, which consist of salaries, bonuses, sales commissions, stock-based
compensation, and other employee-related benefits. Operating expenses also include non-personnel costs such as facilities, technology, professional fees,
and marketing. In light of macroeconomic conditions and their past and potential future impacts on our business, we have made efforts to contain our
operating expenses, including implementing a restructuring plan in the first quarter of 2023. Rising inflation, and in particular increases to the cost of labor
due to cost-of-living increases, have negatively impacted our operating expenses, and we expect this to continue. However, inflation has not materially
affected our business to date.

Sales and marketing. Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of personnel costs such as salaries, bonuses, sales commissions, stock-based
compensation, and other employee-related benefits for our sales and marketing teams, as well as non-personnel costs including overhead costs, technology,
and marketing costs. While we have slowed hiring in response to macroeconomic conditions, and expect to maintain slower levels until macroeconomic
conditions improve, we continue to hire additional sales and marketing personnel, enhance our digital marketing infrastructure, and invest in marketing
programs targeting our major vertical markets.

Product development. Product development expenses primarily consist of personnel costs such as salaries, bonuses, stock-based compensation, and
other employee-related benefits for our engineering, data science, and product teams, as well as non-personnel costs including overhead costs. We believe
that our core technologies and ongoing innovation represent a significant competitive advantage for us, and we continue to invest in systems optimization
and module improvements for our customers, enhance our software development team and invest in automation and artificial intelligence to drive higher
quality data and deeper insights.
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General and administrative. General and administrative expenses primarily consist of personnel costs such as salaries, bonuses, stock-based
compensation, and other employee-related benefits for our executive, finance, legal, human resources, IT and operations, and administrative teams, as well
as non-personnel costs including overhead costs, professional fees, and other corporate expenses. General and administration expenses also include sales
tax amounts payable to taxation authorities, inclusive of interest and penalties, for customers that we did not collect sales taxes from, due to
misclassifications of products and services for sales tax purposes. We do not expect sales taxes and related interest and penalties to be an ongoing
component of our general and administrative expense as we complete voluntary disclosure agreements, register with certain tax authorities, and commence
collection of sales taxes from customers in these tax jurisdictions.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expenses consist primarily of amortization of intangible assets resulting from
acquisitions and business combinations, as well as depreciation of property and equipment. We anticipate depreciation of property and equipment as a
percentage of revenue to moderately decrease, although amortization will increase if we make additional acquisitions in the future.

Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses. Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses are costs directly associated with various
acquisition and integration activities we have undertaken, primarily accounting and legal due diligence, and consulting and advisory fees, as well as
expenses related to our restructuring plan announced in the first quarter of 2023 and our office relocations.

Other Expense, Net

Other expense, net consists primarily of interest expense, interest income, and other expense, net.

Interest expense consists of interest expense on our debt obligations and the amortization of debt discounts and debt issuance costs. We expect, as a
result of recently rising interest rates, that interest expense will increase for 2023 over prior periods for the unhedged portion of our outstanding debt while
interest rate swap agreements will keep the hedged portion of outstanding debt fixed.

Interest income consists of earnings resulting from our short-term investments.

Other income (expense), net consists primarily of the revaluation of tax receivable agreement liabilities and realized and unrealized gains and losses
related to the impact of transactions denominated in a foreign currency. Significant changes in the projected liability resulting from the tax receivable
agreement may occur based on changes in anticipated future taxable income, changes in applicable tax rates, or other changes in tax attributes that may
occur and could affect the expected future tax benefits to be received by us. We do not have significant exposure to foreign exchange volatility and do not
anticipate foreign currency transaction gains or losses to materially impact our results of operations.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth a summary of our condensed consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented:

(in thousands)
Revenue $
Cost of revenue:

Cost of revenue exclusive of amortization

Amortization

Total cost of revenue

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
Product development
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Transaction, integration, and restructuring expenses

Total operating expenses

Loss from operations
Total other (expense) income, net

Net loss before income taxes
Benefit from income taxes

Net loss

Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net loss attributable to Definitive Healthcare Corp. $

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2023 2022 2023 2022
(As Restated) (As Restated)
60,957 $ 54,548 $ 120,158 $ 104,672
8,078 6,198 16,630 12,148
3,090 5,580 6,444 10,958
11,168 11,778 23,074 23,106
49,789 42,770 97,084 81,566
24,702 23,585 48,125 44,878
10,229 8,706 20,113 15,556
13,670 10,056 27,749 21,091
9,688 10,194 19,278 20,068
3,571 2,107 6,161 3,417
61,860 54,648 121,426 105,010
(12,071) (11,878) (24,342) (23,444)
(1,018) 1,523 (5,429) (376)
(13,089) (10,355) (29,771) (23,820)
1,484 213 2,194 639
(11,605) (10,142) (27,577) (23,181)
(3,039) (4,656) (6,948) (9,114)
(8,566) $ (5,486) $ (20,629) $ (14,067)
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2023 compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2022

Revenue

Revenue increased $6.4 million, or 12%, in the three months ended June 30, 2023 compared with the same period in the prior year, driven primarily
by higher subscription revenue of $6.1 million and higher professional service revenue of $0.3 million. Increases from the organic addition of new
customers in the amount of $7.9 million was partially offset by a $1.4 million reduction in revenue from customers that existed as of the end of the prior
year.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue decreased $0.6 million, or 5%, in the three months ended June 30, 2023 compared with the same period in the prior year. This
decrease was driven by a $2.5 million reduction in amortization, primarily due to a substantial acquired data asset reaching the end of its economic life in
July 2022. This decrease was partially offset by a $1.8 million increase in hosting fees and data subscription costs as a result of expanded customer usage
of our platform and the rollout of additional third-party data sources to our customers at the beginning of 2023.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $7.2 million, or 13%, during the three months ended June 30, 2023 compared with the same period in the prior year.
While inflation has generally contributed to rising vendor and labor costs, we believe the increase to operating expenses was primarily due to:

. An increase in sales and marketing expense of $1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to increased personnel
costs resulting from additional hiring, partially offset by decreases in stock-based compensation expense due to key role transitions;

. An increase in product development expense of $1.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to increases in stock-
based compensation expense and increased personnel costs resulting from additional hiring, partially offset by decreases in professional fees;

. An increase in general and administrative expense of $3.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to increases in
personnel costs, including stock-based compensation expense from new equity grants and key role transitions over the past year, along with
increases in sales tax expense from increased sales of services to customers, representing amounts payable, inclusive of interest and penalties,
to taxation authorities in which we did not charge the customer for sales taxes, and an increase in bad debt expense, partially offset by savings
from franchise taxes, new insurance policies, and reduced professional fees;

. An increase in transaction, integration and restructuring expenses of $1.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to
costs associated with the acquisition of Populi and our restructuring plan announced on January 12, 2023, partially offset by impairments of
assets associated with the exit of certain leased office facilities in the prior period.

Other (Expense) Income, Net

Total other expense, net was $1.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023 compared to total other income, net of $1.5 million, as restated,
in the same period in the prior year. The overall decrease was primarily attributed to a $4.9 million increase in other expense, net, primarily due to a TRA
liability remeasurement loss driven by future realizability of tax attributes payable under the TRA, and a $1.0 million increase in interest expense due to
rising interest rates from our debt obligations, partially offset by a $3.4 million increase in interest income earned from our short-term investments.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2022

Revenue

Revenue increased $15.5 million, or 15%, in the six months ended June 30, 2023 compared with the same period in the prior year, driven primarily
by higher subscription revenue of $14.8 million and higher professional service revenue of $0.7 million. Increases from the organic addition of new
customers in the amount of $16.0 million and the acquisition of Analytical Wizards in February 2022 in the amount of $1.3 million were partially offset by
a $1.8 million reduction in revenue from customers that existed as of the end of the prior year.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2023 compared with the same period in the prior year remained flat. Expanded customer usage of
our platform and the rollout of additional third-party data sources to our customers at the beginning of 2023 increased hosting fees and data subscription
costs by $3.8 million. In addition, employee costs increased by $0.7 million due to expansion of customer support and professional service roles, primarily
resulting from the acquisition of Analytical Wizards in February 2022. These increases were partially offset by a $4.5 million reduction in amortization,
primarily due to a substantial acquired data asset reaching the end of its economic life in July 2022.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $16.4 million, or 16%, during the six months ended June 30, 2023 compared with the same period in the prior year.
While inflation has generally contributed to rising vendor and labor costs, we believe the increase to operating expenses was primarily due to:

. An increase in sales and marketing expense of $3.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to increased personnel
costs resulting from additional hiring, along with increased advertising costs, partially offset by decreases in stock-based compensation
expense due to key role transitions;

. An increase in product development expense of $4.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to increases in stock-
based compensation expense and increased personnel costs resulting from additional hiring;

. An increase in general and administrative expense of $6.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to increases in
stock-based compensation expense from new equity grants and key role transitions over the past year, along with increases in sales tax
expense from increased sales of services to customers, representing amounts payable, inclusive of interest and penalties, to taxation
authorities in which we did not charge the customer for sales taxes, and an increase in bad debt expense, partially offset by savings from
franchise taxes, new insurance policies, rent and facility costs due to prior year office closures, and reduced professional fees;

. An increase in transaction, integration and restructuring expenses of $2.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, due primarily to
costs associated with the acquisition of Populi and our restructuring plan announced on January 12, 2023, partially offset by impairments of
assets associated with the exit of certain leased office facilities in the prior period.

Other Expense, Net

Total other expense, net was $5.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 compared to total other expense, net of $0.4 million, as restated, in
the same period in the prior year. The overall increase was primarily attributed to a $8.5 million increase in other expense, net, primarily due to a TRA
liability remeasurement loss driven by future realizability of tax attributes payable under the TRA, and a $2.7 million increase in interest expense due to
rising interest rates from our debt obligations, partially offset by a $6.2 million increase in interest income earned from our short-term investments.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

As of June 30, 2023, we had $132.4 million of cash and cash equivalents, $218.5 million of short-term investments, and $75.0 million available
under our revolving credit facility. Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments on hand, primarily from our
IPO and follow-on offerings, as well as the cash flows we generate from operations. Our principal uses of liquidity have been primarily for investment in
long-term growth of the business through capital expenditures and acquisitions, including the acquisition of Populi in July 2023, as well as debt services
and distributions to members of Definitive OpCo.

All of our business is conducted through Definitive OpCo and its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, and the financial results are included in the
condensed consolidated financial statements of Definitive Healthcare Corp. Definitive Healthcare Corp. has no independent means of generating revenue.
The Amended LLC Agreement provides that certain distributions will be made to cover Definitive Healthcare Corp.'s taxes and such tax distributions are
also expected to be used by Definitive Healthcare Corp. to satisfy its obligations under the TRA. We have broad discretion to make distributions out of
Definitive OpCo. In the event Definitive Healthcare Corp. declares any cash dividend, we expect to cause Definitive OpCo to make distributions to us, in
an amount sufficient to cover such cash dividends declared by us. Deterioration in the financial condition, earnings, or cash flow of Definitive OpCo and its
subsidiaries for any reason could limit or impair their ability to pay such distributions. In addition, the terms of our 2021 Credit Agreement contain
covenants that may restrict DH Holdings and its subsidiaries from paying such distributions, subject to certain exceptions. Further, Definitive OpCo and
Definitive Healthcare Corp. are generally prohibited under Delaware law from making a distribution to a member to the extent that, at the time of the
distribution, after giving effect to the distribution, liabilities of Definitive OpCo and DH Holdings (with certain exceptions), as applicable, exceed the fair
value of its assets. Subsidiaries of DH Holdings are generally subject to similar legal limitations on their ability to make distributions to DH Holdings.

We believe that our cash flow from operations, availability under the 2021 Credit Agreement and available cash and cash equivalents and short-term
investments will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs for at least the next twelve months. We anticipate that to the extent that we require additional
liquidity, it will be funded through the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the issuance of additional equity, or a combination thereof. We cannot provide
assurance that we will be able to obtain this additional liquidity on reasonable terms, or at all.

Additionally, our liquidity and our ability to meet our obligations and fund our capital requirements are dependent on our future financial
performance, which is subject to general economic, financial, and other factors that are beyond our control. See “Risk Factors” in our 2022 Form 10-K/A
and the factors described elsewhere in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Macroeconomic
conditions, including rising inflation and a potential recession, could increase our anticipated funding requirements. In the event we need to seek additional
funding, rising interest rates, stock market volatility, or other unfavorable macroeconomic conditions may also prevent us from obtaining additional
financing on favorable terms or at all. Moreover, the recent closures of Silicon Valley Bank and Signature Bank have resulted in broader financial
institution liquidity risk and concerns. Future adverse developments with respect to specific financial institutions or the broader financial services industry
may lead to market-wide liquidity shortages that could impact us and our customers, and materially harm our business and financial condition. Our ability
to access our cash, cash equivalents and investments, including transferring funds, making payments or receiving funds could be threatened and our ability
to raise additional capital could be substantially impaired, any of which could materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition.
Accordingly, we cannot provide assurance that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be available
from additional indebtedness or otherwise to meet our liquidity needs. In addition, if we decide to pursue one or more significant acquisitions, we may
incur additional debt or sell or issue additional equity to finance such acquisitions, which could possibly result in additional expenses or dilution.

Credit Risk

Our financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables. We hold cash with reputable financial institutions that often exceed federally insured limits. We manage our credit risk by concentrating our
cash deposits with high-quality financial institutions and periodically evaluating the credit quality of those institutions. The carrying value of cash
approximates fair value.

Impact of Inflation

We do not believe inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations. However, if our costs were to
become subject to significant inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset higher costs through price increases and our inability or failure to do
so could potentially harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods presented:

Six Months Ended June 30,
(in thousands) 2023 2022
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 26,994 $ 29,114
Investing activities (32,130) (177,033)
Financing activities (9,156) (11,124)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (excluding effect of exchange rate changes) $ (14,292) $ (159,043)

Cash Flows provided by Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $27.0 million during the six months ended June 30, 2023, primarily as a result of a net loss of $27.6
million, offset by non-cash charges of $58.6 million. The non-cash charges were primarily comprised of amortization of intangible assets of $24.8 million,
equity compensation costs of $23.5 million, a loss on remeasurement of the TRA of $4.7 million, and amortization of deferred contract costs of $6.0
million. The net decrease in operating assets and liabilities of $4.1 million was primarily driven by cash outflows resulting from an increase in deferred
contract costs of $9.1 million, lower accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities, collectively, of $3.0 million, an increase in prepaid
expense and other assets of $3.6 million, and a decrease in deferred revenue of $2.2 million due to the timing of billings and cash received in advance of
revenue recognition for subscription services. These factors were partially offset by a decrease in accounts receivable of $13.9 million.

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2023 was $32.1 million, driven primarily by $132.8 million in purchases of
short-term investments, partially offset by $102.7 million in maturities of short-term investments.

Cash Flows used in Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2023 was $9.2 million, primarily driven by repayments of the 2021 Term
Loan (as defined below) of $3.4 million, $2.8 million in tax distribution payments to members, and taxes paid related to the net share settlement of equity
awards of $2.6 million.

Refer to Debt Obligations for additional information related to our debt obligations.

Debt Obligations

On September 17, 2021, DH Holdings entered into the 2021 Credit Agreement, providing for (i) a $275.0 million term loan A facility (the “2021
Term Loan”) and (ii) a $75.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2021 Revolving Line of Credit”). The 2021 Term Loan of $275.0 million has a maturity
date of September 17, 2026. The 2021 Term Loan was recorded net of $3.5 million in issuance costs, which are amortized to interest expense over the term
of the loan using the effective interest method.

The 2021 Term Loan is subject to annual amortization of principal, payable in equal quarterly installments on the last day of each fiscal quarter,
commencing on the Initial Amortization Date, equal to approximately 2.5% per annum of the principal amount of the term loans in the first year and second
year after the Initial Amortization Date and approximately 5.0% per annum of the principal amount of the term loans in the third year, fourth year, and fifth
year after the Initial Amortization Date. A balloon payment of approximately $220.0 million will be due at maturity. There was $263.0 million outstanding
on the 2021 Term Loan at June 30, 2023.

The 2021 Revolving Line of Credit is committed for $75.0 million and has a maturity date of September 17, 2026. There was no outstanding balance
as of June 30, 2023. On October 31, 2022, the Company amended the 2021 Credit Agreement to replace the LIBO rate with Term SOFR plus an applicable
rate.

The 2021 Credit Agreement includes certain financial covenants, and the Company was compliant with its financial covenants under the 2021 Credit
Agreement as of June 30, 2023 and December 31, 2022.
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Tax Receivable Agreement

In connection with the Reorganization Transactions and the IPO, the Company entered into the TRA with certain of our pre- IPO unitholders and the
former shareholders of certain Blocker Companies. The TRA provides for the payment by Definitive Healthcare Corp. of 85% of the amount of any tax
benefits that it actually realizes, or in some cases is deemed to realize, as a result of (i) certain tax attributes that it acquired from the Blocker Companies in
the Reorganization Transactions (including net operating losses and the unamortized portion of the increase in tax basis in the tangible and intangible assets
of Definitive OpCo and its subsidiaries resulting from the prior acquisitions of interests in Definitive OpCo by the Blocker Companies), (ii) certain tax
basis adjustments resulting from the acquisition of LL.C Units by Definitive Healthcare Corp., and (iii) certain payments made under the TRA.

In each case, these tax basis adjustments generated over time may increase (for tax purposes) the Definitive Healthcare Corp.’s depreciation and
amortization deductions and, therefore, may reduce the amount of tax that the Definitive Healthcare Corp. would otherwise be required to pay in the future,
although the IRS may challenge all or part of the validity of that tax basis, and a court could sustain such a challenge. The anticipated tax basis adjustments
upon redemptions or exchanges of LLC Units may also decrease gains (or increase losses) on future dispositions of certain assets to the extent tax basis is
allocated to those assets. The payment obligations under the TRA are an obligation of Definitive Healthcare Corp., but not of Definitive OpCo. Definitive
Healthcare Corp. expects to benefit from the remaining 15% of realized cash tax benefits. For purposes of the TRA, the realized cash tax benefits will be
computed by comparing the actual income tax liability of Definitive Healthcare Corp. (calculated with certain assumptions) to the amount of such taxes that
Definitive Healthcare Corp. would have been required to pay had there been no tax basis adjustments of the assets of Definitive Healthcare Corp. as a result
of redemptions or exchanges and no utilization of certain tax attributes of the Blocker Companies, and had Definitive Healthcare Corp. not entered into the
TRA. The term of the TRA will continue until all such tax benefits have been utilized or expired, unless (i) Definitive Healthcare Corp. exercises its right to
terminate the TRA for an amount based on the agreed payments remaining to be made under the agreement, (ii) Definitive Healthcare Corp. breaches any
of its material obligations under the TRA in which case all obligations (including any additional interest due relating to any deferred payments) generally
will be accelerated and due as if Definitive Healthcare Corp. had exercised its right to terminate the TRA, or (iii) there is a change of control of Definitive
Healthcare Corp., in which case, all obligations (including any additional interest due relating to any deferred payments) generally will be accelerated and
due as if Definitive Healthcare Corp. had exercised its right to terminate the TRA as described above in clause (i). Estimating the amount of payments that
may be made under the TRA is by its nature imprecise, insofar as the calculation of amounts payable depends on a variety of factors. The amount of the
anticipated tax basis adjustments, as well as the amount and timing of any payments under the TRA, will vary depending upon a number of factors,
including the timing of exchanges, the price of shares of our Class A Common Stock at the time of an exchange, the extent to which such exchanges are
taxable, the amount of tax attributes, and the amount and timing of our income.

We expect that as a result of the size of the anticipated tax basis adjustment of the tangible and intangible assets of Definitive OpCo upon the
exchange or redemption of LLC Units and our possible utilization of certain tax attributes, the payments that Definitive Healthcare Corp. may make under
the TRA will be substantial. The payments under the TRA are not conditioned upon continued ownership of us by the exchanging holders of LLC Units.
See Note 15. Income Taxes in our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures increased by $0.5 million to $2.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023 compared to $1.6 million for the same period
in the prior year, primarily due to the acquisition of new data sources.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, which requires us to make
estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and on other factors that we
believe to be reasonable. Actual results may differ from those estimates. We review these estimates on a periodic basis to ensure reasonableness. Although
actual amounts may differ from such estimated amounts, we believe such differences are not likely to be material. For additional detail regarding our
critical accounting policies and estimates including business combinations, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, and income taxes, see our
discussion for the year ended December 31, 2022 included in our 2022 Form 10-K/A. There have been no material changes to these policies or estimates as
of June 30, 2023.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See new accounting pronouncements described under “—Adoption of Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards” and “—Recently Issued
Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted” within Note 1. Organization and Basis of Presentation in the Notes to the unaudited interim condensed
consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial condition due to adverse changes in financial market prices and rates. Our
market risk exposure is primarily a result of exposure due to potential changes in inflation, interest rates, or currency rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments primarily consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments in money market funds, U.S.
government securities, and commercial paper. As of June 30, 2023, we had cash and cash equivalents of $132.4 million and short-term investments of
$218.5 million.

Our operating results are subject to market risk from interest rate fluctuations on our 2021 Term Loan, which bears a variable interest rate based on
the SOFR Rate or a Base Rate plus an applicable margin. In order to reduce the interest rate risk on our debt, we have entered into an interest rate swap
agreement on a portion of our borrowings. As of June 30, 2023, the total principal balance outstanding was $263.0 million. Excluding the effect of the
interest rate swap agreement, a hypothetical 1.0% increase or decrease in the interest rate associated with borrowings under the 2021 Credit Agreement
would have resulted in an impact to interest expense of approximately $1.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

To date, the majority of our sales contracts have been denominated in U.S. dollars. We have one foreign entity established in Sweden and one in
India. The functional currencies of these foreign subsidiaries are the Swedish Krona and the Indian Rupee, respectively. Assets and liabilities of the foreign
subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the reporting date and revenue and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates in effect during each reporting period. Realized and unrealized foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recorded to non-operating loss. As the
impact of foreign currency exchange rates has not been material to our historical results of operations, we have not entered into derivative or hedging
transactions, but we may do so in the future if our exposure to foreign currency becomes more significant.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Based on such evaluation, management identified a material weakness in our internal control
over financial reporting which was also disclosed in the 2022 Form 10-K/A. As a result of this material weakness, management concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of June 30, 2023.

Material Weakness

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

We identified a material weakness in the design of our controls over the collection and remittance of sales taxes, as well as the accurate recording of
our sales tax obligations in the financial statements. This material weakness resulted in the restatement of our financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the unaudited condensed consolidated quarterly financial information for the quarterly periods in the years
ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, as well as the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2023.

This material weakness remains unremediated as of June 30, 2023. Management is taking steps to remediate this material weakness (see
“Remediation Plan in Response to Material Weakness” for details).

Remediation Plan in Response to Material Weakness

In response to the identified material weakness, management, with the oversight of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, has immediately
dedicated resources, including the involvement of additional outside advisors, to put in place effective controls over identification of changes in products
and services that affect classification of products and services for sales tax purposes. Certain remedial actions have been completed including engagement
of additional third-party tax experts and a review of the classification for sales tax purposes of new and/or enhanced products and services. The Company is
completing ongoing remediation steps, including enhancements to sales tax nexus reviews, and the collection, control and subsequent monitoring of
applicable documentation of exempt status from customers in affected jurisdictions. The Company plans to further enhance these controls over the
remainder of 2023.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the quarter ended June 30, 2023, no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
under the Exchange Act) occurred that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting, as
the circumstances that led to the restatement of the financial statements for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 had not yet been identified.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls or our internal
control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that
there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a
simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future
events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Due to the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to various legal proceedings, claims, and governmental inspections, audits, or investigations that arise in the ordinary course of our
business. There are inherent uncertainties in these matters, some of which are beyond management’s control, making the ultimate outcomes difficult to
predict. Moreover, management’s views and estimates related to these matters may change in the future, as new events and circumstances arise and the
matters continue to develop. Although the outcomes of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty, in the opinion of management, the ultimate
resolution of these matters would not be expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

For a more detailed discussion of our risks and uncertainties, see also Item 1A — Risk Factors in our 2022 Form 10-K/A. Except as noted below,
there have been no material changes in our risk factors since the filing of our 2022 Form 10-K/A.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Pursuant to the terms of the Amended LLC Agreement, holders of LLC Units have the right to exchange all or a portion of their LLC Units for
newly issued shares of Class A Common Stock on a one-for-one basis, which issuances are made in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. Upon
any such exchange, a corresponding number of shares of Class B Common Stock held by such LLC Unit holders are cancelled. Such exchanges executed in
the second quarter of 2023 are as follows:

Number of Shares

Date of Exchange Exchanged

April 10, 2023 1,011
May 11, 2023 2,717,043
Total 2,718,054

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Trading Arrangements

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibits filed or furnished herewith are designated by a cross (+); all exhibits not so designated are incorporated by reference to a prior filing as
indicated. Agreements included as exhibits are included only to provide information to investors regarding their terms. Agreements listed below may
contain representations, warranties, and other provisions that were made, among other things, to provide the parties thereto with specified rights and
obligations and to allocate risk among them, and no such agreement should be relied upon as constituting or providing any factual disclosures about
Definitive Healthcare Corp., any other persons, any state of affairs, or other matters.

Exhibit Description
Number

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Definitive Healthcare Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-40815) filed with the SEC on November 8, 2021).

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Definitive Healthcare Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-40815) filed with the SEC on November 8, 2021).

10.1* The Definitive Healthcare Corp. Director Compensation Plan.

31.1%* Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a),_as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)_and 15d-14(a)_under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1%" Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS* Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded
within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

* Filed herewith.

+ The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 that accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Definitive Healthcare Corp. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, irrespective of any general
incorporation language contained in such filing.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1861795/000095017021003484/dh-ex3_1.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1861795/000095017021003484/dh-ex3_2.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.
Registrant

/s/ Robert Musslewhite

August 14, 2023 By:
Date Name: Robert Musslewhite
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Director
/s/ Richard Booth
August 14, 2023 By:
Date Name: Richard Booth

Title: Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

DEFINITIVE HEALTHCARE CORP.
NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION POLICY

ADOPTED: APRIL 18, 2023

Each member of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) who is not (i) also serving as an employee of or consultant to Definitive Healthcare Corp. (the
“Company”) or any of its subsidiaries or (ii) an employee of Advent International Corporation, or Spectrum Equity Management, L.P. or their respective
affiliated funds (each such member, an “Eligible Director”) will receive the compensation described in this policy for his or her Board service. An Eligible
Director may decline all or any portion of his or her compensation by giving notice to the Company prior to the date cash may be paid or equity awards are
to be granted, as the case may be. This policy is effective as of the date set forth above (the “Effective Date”) and may be amended at any time in the sole
discretion of the Board.

A. Annual Cash Compensation

The amounts set forth below (collectively, the “Annual Cash Compensation”) are payable to Eligible Directors in equal quarterly installments in
arrears on the last day of each fiscal quarter in which the service occurred (each such date, the “Retainer Accrual Date”). If an Eligible Director joins the
Board or a committee of the Board at a time other than effective as of the first day of a fiscal quarter of the Company, each amount set forth below will be
pro-rated based on days served in the applicable fiscal quarter, with the pro-rated amount paid on the last day of the first fiscal quarter in which the Eligible
Director provides the service and regular full quarterly payments thereafter. All Annual Cash Compensation amounts are vested upon payment.

1. Annual Board Service Retainer: $50,000

2. Annual Committee Chair Service Retainer:
a. Chair of the Audit Committee: $20,000
b. Chair of Human Capital Management & Compensation Committee (“HCMCC”): $20,000
C. Chair of the Nominating and Governance Committee: $10,000

B. Expenses

The Company will reimburse Eligible Directors for ordinary, necessary and reasonable out-of-pocket travel expenses to cover in-person attendance
at and participation in Board and committee meetings; provided, that the Eligible Director timely submits to the Company appropriate documentation
substantiating such expenses in accordance with the Company’s travel and expense policy, as in effect from time to time.

C. Equity Compensation

The equity compensation set forth below will be granted under the Company’s 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, as may be amended from time to time, or
any successor plan thereto (the “Plan”) and a restricted stock unit (“RSU”) grant notice and award agreement thereunder.

1. Initial RSU Grants. For each Eligible Director who is first elected or appointed to the Board following the Effective Date, on the effective date of
such Eligible Director’s initial election or appointment to the Board (or, if such date is not a market trading day, the first market trading day thereafter) (the
“Appointment Effective Date”), the Eligible Director will automatically, and without further action by the Board or the HCMCC, be granted RSUs with
respect to shares of Common Stock with an aggregate value of $300,000 (the “Initial RSU Grant”). The number of RSUs subject to the Initial RSU Grant
will be determined by dividing the grant value by the simple average trailing 30-day closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock as reported on
Nasdagq, calculated using the 30 trading days up to and including the Appointment Effective Date (or, if the Appointment Effective Date is not a trading
day, then the next trading day following the Appointment Effective Date), rounded up to the nearest whole share. The Initial RSU Grant will vest over a
three-year period, with one-third (1/3) of the Initial RSU Grant vesting on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the Appointment Effective
Date, subject to the Eligible Director’s Service (as defined in the Plan) through each such vesting date.



2. Annual RSU Grants. On the date of each annual stockholder meeting of the Company (each, an “Annual Meeting”) held after the Effective Date
(“Annual Grant Date”), each Eligible Director who continues to serve as a non-employee member of the Board following such Annual Meeting (including
any Eligible Director who is first appointed or elected by the Board at an Annual Meeting) will automatically, and without further action by the Board or
the HCMCGC, be granted RSUs with respect to shares of the Company’s Common Stock with an aggregate value of $175,000 (the “Annual RSU Grant”).
The number of RSUs subject to the Annual RSU Grant will be determined by dividing the grant value by the simple average trailing 30-day closing price of
the Company’s Class A common stock as reported on Nasdaq, calculated using the 30 trading days up to and including the Annual Grant Date (or, if the
Annual Grant Date is not a trading day, then the next trading day following the Annual Grant Date), rounded up to the nearest whole share. The Annual
RSU Grant will vest in full on the earlier to occur of the one-year anniversary of applicable Annual Grant Date or the date of the next year’s Annual
Meeting, subject to the Eligible Director’s Service through such vesting date.

With respect to an Eligible Director who, following the Effective Date, was first elected or appointed to the Board effective as of a date other than
the date of the Annual Meeting, on the applicable Appointment Effective Date, such Eligible Director will automatically, and without further action by the
Board or the HCMCC, receive a grant of RSUs with respect to shares of the Company’s Common Stock, the aggregate value of which will be $175,000,
prorated based on the number of calendar days remaining between the applicable Appointment Effective Date and the first anniversary of the Company’s
last Annual Meeting (the “Prorated Annual RSU Grant”). The number of RSUs subject to the Prorated Annual RSU Grant will be determined by dividing
the grant value by the simple average trailing 30-day closing price of the Company’s Class A common stock as reported on Nasdaq, calculated using the 30
trading days up to and including the Appointment Effective Date (or, if the Appointment Effective Date is not a trading day, then the next trading day
following the Appointment Effective Date), rounded up to the nearest whole share. The Prorated Annual RSU Grant will vest in full on the earlier to occur
of the one-year anniversary of the most recent Annual Grant Date occurring prior to the Appointment Effective Date or the date of the next year’s Annual
Meeting, subject to the Eligible Director’s Service through such vesting date.

3. Accelerated Vesting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Initial RSU Grant, Annual RSU Grant, and Prorated Annual RSU Grant will vest in
full upon a Change in Control (as defined in the Plan), subject to the Eligible Director’s Service through the date of such Change in Control.

D. Non-Employee Director Compensation Limit
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate value of all compensation granted or paid, as applicable, to any individual for service as a Non-

Employee Director (as defined in the Plan) shall in no event exceed the limits set forth in Section 4.4 of the Plan.
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Exhibit 31.1

Management Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Robert Musslewhite, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Definitive Healthcare Corp.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
August 14, 2023 /s/ Robert Musslewhite

Robert Musslewhite
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

Management Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Richard Booth, certify that:

Date:

I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Definitive Healthcare Corp.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
August 14, 2023 /s/Richard Booth

Richard Booth
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Definitive Healthcare Corp. (the “Company”) for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2023
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Robert Musslewhite, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and Richard Booth, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 13a-14(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §
1350), as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 14, 2023

/s/ Robert Musslewhite

Robert Musslewhite
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Richard Booth

Richard Booth
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

This certification accompanies the Form 10-Q to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of Definitive Healthcare Corp. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-Q), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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